
City of Capitola

Council Meeting Agenda

Mayor: Yvette Brooks

Vice Mayor: Sam Storey

Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Margaux Keiser 

Kristen Petersen

REVISED 

THURSDAY, JULY 22, 2021

REGULAR MEETING - 7 PM

CLOSED SESSION – 6 PM 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting.

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Gov’t Code § 54957.6)

 Negotiators: Algeria Ford, Larry Laurent 
Employee Organizations: (1) Police Captains; (2) Capitola Police Officers Association

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.  All matters listed on the Regular Meeting 
of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Margaux Keiser, Sam Storey, and 
Mayor Yvette Brooks



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
July 22, 2021

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 7/28/2021 2:13 PM

2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 8.B – one staff provided attachment

 B. Item 8.C – eight public comment emails

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

6. STAFF / CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS

7. CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed as “Consent Items” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on 
the action unless members of the City Council request specific items to be discussed for 
separate review. Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be 
determined to have been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the June 24 City Council Meeting Minutes
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

B. Approval of City Check Registers Dated June 4, June 11, June 18, June 25, and July 
2.
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

C. Community Grants Strategic Plan Contract
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Optimal Solutions Consulting for $29,400 to develop a strategic plan to implement 
the process improvements to the Capitola Community Grant Program approved by 
the Council on February 13, 2020. 

D. 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Coordination Project Authorization to Advertise for 
Construction Bids
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for the 
41st Avenue Adaptive Signal Control project (estimated at $420,000) and authorize 
advertising for construction bids. 

E. Consider a Resolution Allocating the 2021/22 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account Funds
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution allocating the 2021/22 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funds to engineering and 
construction of a pavement management program project.

8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
July 22, 2021

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 7/28/2021 2:13 PM

discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision.

A. Receive Update on Pandemic Response
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action.

B. Consider Capitola Village Banners Design
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Capitola Village Banners as recommended 
by the Capitola Art and Cultural Commission in partnership with the Capitola Beach 
and Village Improvement Association.

C. Parklet Program Update
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on additional details about the future 
village outdoor dining parklet program and extend the COVID-19 temporary use 
permits allowing for outdoor dining on Capitola Avenue, Monterey Avenue, and Lawn 
Way through September 13, 2021.

D. Authorize the Advertisement of Construction Bids for the Wharf Rehabilitation Project 
- Phase 1
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for 
construction for the Wharf Rehabilitation Project, Phase 1 (estimated cost $482,500), 
and authorize Public Works to advertise for construction bids.  

E. Library Lease Ordinance First Reading
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Determine the bid received from Santa Cruz County to lease the property at 2005 
Wharf Road, and operate and maintain the Capitola Library with a rent payment of 
one dollar per year offers the greatest economic return to the City; and 

2. Approve the first reading and waive reading of the text of the proposed uncodified 
Ordinance allowing the City to enter a lease with a term in excess of 55 years and 
authorizing a 99-year lease with Santa Cruz County for the Capitola Library.

F. Consider Bail Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021/22
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution repealing Resolution No. 
4149 and adopting the new bail schedule. 

G. Designation of the Voting Delegate and Alternate for the 2021 League of California 
Cities Annual Conference
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate voting delegate and alternate(s), if desired.

9. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS
In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the City Council meeting is not physically open to the public and in person 
attendance cannot be accommodated. 

To watch:



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
July 22, 2021

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 7/28/2021 2:13 PM

• Online http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
• Spectrum Cable Television channel 8

To join Zoom:
• Join the Zoom Meeting with the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86050586042?pwd=TERzU0lHdE9OeHViM0FKckxzNUJhUT09

o If prompted for a passcode, enter 756925
-OR- With a landline or mobile phone, call one of the following numbers:

o 1 669 900 6833
1 408 638 0968
1 346 248 7799

• Enter the meeting ID number: 860 5058 6042
• When prompted for a Participant ID, press #

To submit public comment: 
When submitting public comment, one comment (via phone or email, not both), per person, per 
item is allowed. If you send more than one email about the same item, the last received will be 
read. 

Zoom Meeting (Via Computer or Phone) Link:
• IF USING COMPUTER: 

o Use participant option to “raise hand” during the public comment period for the 
item you wish to speak on. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes to 
speak

• IF CALLED IN OVER THE PHONE: 
o Press *9 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the mayor calls for public 

comment. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes to speak
Send Email: 

• During the meeting, send comments via email to publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us  
o Emailed comments on items will be accepted after the start of the meeting until 

the Mayor announces that public comment for that item is closed.
o Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds to 

approximately 3 minutes of speaking time.
o Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or 

displayed on a screen.
o Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment 

period outlined above will not be included in the record.

Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
July 22, 2021

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 7/28/2021 2:13 PM

are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall prior to 
the meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, 
Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting 
Agendas/Videos.” Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time.



ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.B 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JULY 22, 2021

3.A

Packet Pg. 6

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
 -

 o
n

e 
st

af
f 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.B 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JULY 22, 2021

3.A

Packet Pg. 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
 -

 o
n

e 
st

af
f 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.B 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JULY 22, 2021

3.A

Packet Pg. 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
 -

 o
n

e 
st

af
f 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.B 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL JULY 22, 2021

3.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.B
 -

 o
n

e 
st

af
f 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



EMERGENCY SIDEWALK RESTAURANT USE IN ESPANADE 

This is a formal objection to further extension of all out-door and/or Parking Areas 
for “Restaurant Use” in the City of Capitola.   

The City approved the temporary use of outdoor areas in the Esplanade adjacent to 
and in support of restaurant businesses and their loss of income during the Covid-
19 epidemic. 

This emergency use-measure has generated new noise, which is negatively 
impacting the entitlement of a ‘peaceful and quiet environment’ for the residents 
living in existing dwellings within the Esplanade.  We are full-time residents of the 
11 Unit privately owned condominium building, at 109 Monterey Avenue in the 
Esplanade.  Our building is 97 years old and is affected by the increase in noise 
generated by Outdoor dining at Lawn Way, Esplanade, Capitola Avenue, and 
Monterey Avenue.  It is therefore unreasonable that the temporary Outdoor Dining 
be allowed to remain. 

Noise that is disruptive to the use and enjoyment of residences in the Esplanade has 
been a long-standing issue in the Capitola Village, and has led to restricted uses of 
noise-generating activities, events, hours limiting event activities, operation hours 
of the bars, closed doors of bars and restaurants, beach use/music, or otherwise 
adding any additional outdoor noise that is causing a negative impact on residential 
use which is unreasonable. 

“NEW” outdoor dining areas can be allowed in other areas in the County which do 
not disrupt others, such as Commercial or Rural areas, and do not further bring 
more people to an already over-crowded beach-access environment.   

Sincerely, 

Mary Anne Mckittrick 
109 Monterey Ave, #3 
mcmary35@yahoo.com 
mb:  775-546-3445 

Jim Johnson 

Barbara Thomas 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)

mailto:mcmary35@yahoo.com


1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: Carrie Arnone <carrie@capitolachamber.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 11:19 AM
To: City Council
Subject: [SPF Softfail] Capitola-Soquel Chamber supports outdoor dining parklets

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Mayor Brooks and City Council,  
  
The Capitola‐Soquel Chamber of Commerce has had the opportunity to rework the Capitola Art & Wine Festival site 
layout and circulation plan since the agenda packet was published last week.  Within the final festival layout, in support 
of our village businesses, we have eliminated approximately 25 booth spaces to accommodate the parklets currently 
remaining in the village.  Please include these dining decks in your consideration for extending the outdoor dining 
through September 13th. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Carrie Arnone ǀ CEO 
Capitola‐Soquel Chamber of Commerce 
1855 41st Ave#J6 ǀ Capitola CA 95010 
831.475.6522 
 

  

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: Nels Westman <nels@bestwestman.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 3:01 PM
To: City Council
Subject: Council Mtg 7/22/21 Item 8C

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear City Council Members,  
 
I write in reference to the Parklet Program Update. I would like to make the following observations and suggestions: 
 
 
Regarding Fees, as with any well written rental/lease agreement, rent should be payable in advance. I would suggest it 
be payable monthly which will give the City early warning of problematic lessees not keeping their end of the contract. 
This is prudent these days.  
 
Regarding the Method of Allocating Spaces, it should be clearly stated that a maximum of TWO spaces can be leaesed to 
one applicant. 
 
Regarding Parklet Design, prototype designs should be prepared for both Parallel and Diagonal parking applications. 
 
I question the wisdom of incorporating bicycle racks as a safety buffer between carelessly driven autos and parklet 
diners. This puts the public’s often very expensive bicycles in a particularly vulnerable position unnecessarily.The 
prototype design should recommend other methods of buffering the parklets other than bicycles. 
 
I note that the example of Lupulo’s parklet is included in the Update. This design appears to utilize a concrete slab to 
provide solid anchorage for bollards. Such a concrete slab would appear to interfere with proper storm drainage of the 
Village which we know is a serious problem which can flood adjacent buildings. It could also make access to under street 
utilities difficult.  
 
I would encourage the Council to insist that the prototype parklet designs meet a very high aesthetic standard so that 
they significantly enhance the Village streetscape as opposed to what currently exists there. 
 
Thank you for your attention these comments.  
 
Nels Westman 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 12

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: AnnMarie@CapitolaWineBar.com
Sent: Wednesday, July 21, 2021 9:59 PM
To: City Council
Subject: Outdoor dinning on San Jose Ave - Please let us have this during Art & Wine

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi, 

Please, please, let us have our space for the parklet just one more week. It certainly doesn't seem fair 
that some of the parklets are allowed and we aren’t. We would add such a great ambiance to the festival. 
Don't take that away. Don't take away the chance for us to recoup the losses of the last 16 months. We 
were really hit hard during this past year. We are a social location, curbside pick up didn't cover the bills. 
We had an increase in rent and utilities  

I also reached out to the chamber. They seamed open to the idea. See email here below. 

 

Hi Ann Marie, 

Thanks for reaching out. We certainly understand how beneficial the parklets are for you, however we are 
losing 16 booth spaces along with the revenue they bring to the festival. We understand the loss of 
business due to the pandemic these past 16 months. Our staff was laid off for 14 months, and only two of 
us have returned. We hope to have a successful Art & Wine Festival, as it is the major fundraiser that 
keeps our door open. I have followed up with City of Capitola to express our willingness to work around 
the existing parklet on San Jose Ave. We hope you will support the Capitola-Soquel Chamber, a nonprofit 
member-supported organization, and our efforts to support our business community. 

  

Thanks, 

Carrie 

  

Carrie Arnone ǀ CEO 
Capitola-Soquel Chamber of Commerce 
831.475.6522 

  

Thanks again for your consideration in helping out the businesses hit hard by the Covid. 

--  
Ann Marie Conrad 
Owner 
Capitola Wine Bar & Merchants 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



2

  
www.capitolawinebar.com 
instagram.com/capitolawinebar 
facebook.com/capitolawinebar 
   

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 14

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: doug@capitolawinebar.com
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 10:03 AM
To: City Council
Cc: AnnMarie
Subject: San Jose ave parklett

Honorable city council, 

We implore you to reconsider the removal of the Parklett on San Jose Ave before the Art and Wine festival. 

Of all business located within the village, Bars were forced to close the longest, and were forced to endure the hardest 
restrictions overall. Our bar has not recovered from the financial damage of COVID-19.  Outdoor seating has helped, but 
remember while outdoor dining was a help during COVID, it was not an end all to the financial strains our business is 
enduring. 

If our business was permitted maintain our Parklett just one more week for the Art and Wine festival it would help our 
recovery. Our rent in the Mercantile is very high (even raised during Covid), our payroll has skyrocketed, and cost of 
goods have never been so high. We need every sale we can gain before winter slow down. 

We understand the non profit Chamber of Commerce has also taken a large economic hit during covid and that this is a 
large fundraiser for them. But keep in mind our brick and mortar is a long term business here in the village. Business like 
ours is what chambers are here to support, not hurt. We believe our wine and food service in the Parklett would benefit 
the event and our customers have said so too. 

Now is not the time to cut our income. 

It is my understanding two other bars will be permitted to keep their Parkletts on the street during the Art and Wine but we 
will not be. How is that equitable? 

Please reconsider allowing us to keep our Parklett for the art and wine festival just one more week. 

 

 

Thank you, 

 

Doug Conrad 

Owner 

Capitola Wine Bar 

 

Cc: Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 15

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: David Aaron <davidaaron5678@att.net>
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 3:23 PM
To: Brooks, Yvette; City Council
Subject: San Jose parklet

We are writing to request that the City of Capitola allow the San Jose parklet to remain open to 
outdoor dining through the Art & Wine Festival (Sept 11 and 12th weekend).  We think it’s important 
to support these businesses (Left Coast Sausage, Wine Bar, and Caruso's) as they recover from the 
Covid months.  Since a few other parklets will remain open through that weekend (benefitting 
Britannia Arms, English Ales and El Toro Bravo), we hope you will agree that it would be equitable to 
also keep open the San Jose parklet.  Thank you for your consideration of our request. 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
David & Deb Aaron 
116 Central Avenue 
 
 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 16

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: Shanna Kuempel <shanna.kuempel18@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 4:05 PM
To: City Council
Subject: Outdoor seating for Art and Wine

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
Honorable city council, 
I implore you to reconsider the removal of the outdoor dining on San Jose Ave before the Art and Wine festival. 
 
Of all business affected by Covid restrictions Businesses such as the Capitola Wine Bar were among the hardest hit.   
Allowing them to keep the outside  seating during the Art and Wine festival seems like the right thing to do.    
 
If the Capitola Wine Bar is permitted maintain outdoor seating for  just one more week for the Art and Wine festival it 
would help their recovery and allow customers to feel safe with an outdoor option. 
 
Businesses such as Capitola Wine Bar and Carusos are staple businesses in the village for the local community as well as 
tourism.  Business like theirs are what the Chamber of Commerce is here to support, not hinder.   The outdoor seating 
allows for those businesses to recoup some of the losses of Covid restrictions.    
 
Please reconsider allowing restaurants on San Jose avenue  to keep outdoor seating for the Art and Wine  Festival.  
 
Thank you, 
Shanna Kuempel  
 
 
 
Cc: Capitola/Soquel Chamber of Commerce 
 
 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 17

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: Aldo Orsi <aldo.orsi@emdgroup.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 4:06 PM
To: City Council
Subject: Removal of Parkletts for Art & Wine Festival

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Capitola City Council Representatives 
 
It was brought to my attention that you are planning to remove the Parklett on San Jose Ave before the Art and Wine 
festival.  It’s disappointing to learn that this might take place.  One of the positive outcomes of the COVID‐19 restrictions 
was the implementation of outdoor seating/dining/drinking for the food and beverage businesses, which were arguably 
the most adversely impacted businesses during the pandemic.  And I would strongly argue that most, if not all, 
restaurants/bars have not recovered financially.  I can’t imagine how difficult it’s been for the business owners that have 
had to manage throughout the pandemic over the past 16+ months.   
 
The additional outdoor seating has not just created an opportunity for the businesses to modestly recover (although I’m 
sure it’s insignificant to the losses incurred), but it has also created a more festive atmosphere, not unlike what you 
might see in many European cities.  I’ve learned that many communities and towns are keeping the outdoor seating 
because of the benefit to the businesses, as well as benefitting the local areas where outdoor seating is established.   
 
While some businesses are starting to recover, many challenges still exist.  Supply chains are compromised, which has 
driven up material/food costs.  The government subsidies have motivated people to stay at home, requiring businesses 
to increase hourly pay to get people to work, if they can find them (Burger King is paying upwards of $20/hr and offering 
$1500 signing bonuses to flip burgers – it’s crazy out there). It’s been documented that the food industry has been 
impacted by lack of available employees, which delays their ability to operate at 100% capacity to help with their 
financial recovery. 
 
Walking through the Capitola Village is more enjoyable now with the festive atmosphere with the outdoor seating at the 
various restaurants and bars.  Yes, some parking spaces have been lost, but the tradeoff is well worth it.   
 
For the benefit of the business owners that have experienced significant financial and emotional impact these past 16 
months, I urge you to keep all outdoor seating, and in particular, help the business owners that would be adversely 
impacted by removing the San Jose Avenue Parklett, especially during one of the biggest events of the year. 
 
Your sincerely, 
Aldo Orsi – a friend of Capitola Village, and a particular fan of the Capitola Wine Bar and their exceptional wine, beer, 
and food (and business owners). 
 
 
Aldo Orsi 
Global Executive Account Manager – Intel 
Electronics | Semiconductor Solutions 

 
The Electronics business of Merck KGaA, Darmstadt, Germany operates as EMD Electronics in the U.S. and Canada. 
 
EMD Electronics | San Jose, CA | United States 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 18

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



2

Mobile: +1 908 285 9339 | E-mail: aldo.orsi@emdgroup.com  
www.emdgroup.com 
 

        

 
  
This message and any attachment are confidential and may be privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended 
recipient, you must not copy this message or attachment or disclose the contents to any other person. If you have received this transmission in 
error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the message and any attachment from your system. Merck KGaA, Darmstadt, Germany 
and any of its subsidiaries do not accept liability for any omissions or errors in this message which may arise as a result of E-Mail-transmission or 
for damages resulting from any unauthorized changes of the content of this message and any attachment thereto. Merck KGaA, Darmstadt, 
Germany and any of its subsidiaries do not guarantee that this message is free of viruses and does not accept liability for any damages caused 
by any virus transmitted therewith. 
  
Click emdgroup.com/disclaimer to access the German, French, Spanish, Portuguese, Turkish, Polish and Slovak versions of this disclaimer. 
  
Please find our Privacy Statement information by clicking here emdgroup.com/en/privacy-statement.html 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.C 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 22, 2021 3.B

Packet Pg. 19

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 8

.C
 -

 e
ig

h
t 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

en
t 

em
ai

ls
  (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the June 24 City Council Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review and approval are the minutes from both the regular 
and special City Council meetings held on June 24, 2021. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 6-24-21 draft
2. 6-24-21 draft SPECIAL

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.A

Packet Pg. 20



 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, JUNE 24, 2021 - 6 PM 

 

CLOSED SESSION – 5 PM  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  

(Gov’t Code §  54957.6) 
             Negotiators: Algeria Ford, Larry Laurent  

Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Police Captains; 3) Mid-
Management Group; (4) Department Heads; (5) Confidential Employees; (6) Capitola Police 
Officers Association 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 6 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Council Member Kristen Petersen: Remote, Vice Mayor 

Sam Storey: Remote, Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote, Council Member Margaux Keiser: Remote.  

 2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

  B. Item 7.C – one public comment email 

  B. Item 8.A – three public comment emails  

  C. Item 8.G – Six staff provided supporting documents   

 4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA – NONE 

 5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 6. STAFF / CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Director Jesberg announced the Clares Street Improvement Project Community Workshop, on 
Wednesday, June 30, at 6PM on Zoom.   
 
Council Member Bertrand discussed the Area Agency on Aging’s master plan on aging. He also reiterated 

the public’s desire to have benches returned along Esplanade Drive and asked staff about the playground 
railing that has yet to be installed at the new Library.   
 
Council Member Petersen acknowledged and thanked Frank Perry, the City Museum Curator, who retires 
at the end of the month.   
 

Mayor Brooks reminded the community about the upcoming Art Walk on Sunday, June 27 at 10AM. She 
asked that staff and council consider beginning in-person Council meetings in October.  

 7. CONSENT ITEMS 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

MOTION: APPROVE, RECEIVE, ACCEPT, AND DETERMINE AS RECOMMENDED  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

A. Consider the June 10 City Council Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.  

C. Update on Regional Bikeshare Program and Issuance of Request for Proposal 
Recommendation: Accept update on regional bikeshare program and the issuance of 
a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a no-cost regional bike share program with a 
single vendor. 

D. Receive Update on Pandemic Response 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action. 

 8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Update on the Proposed Outdoor Dining Program 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the development of an outdoor 
dining program and provide input on key elements of the program as detailed in the 
report. 

 
Council Member Keiser recused herself from Items 8.A, 8.B. and 8.C.   

 
Director Jesberg and Director Herlihy presented a staff report on outdoor dining.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked for more information on the prototype design possibilities and 
maintained that some originality would be preferred.  
 

Vice-Mayor Storey confirmed that 180 feet is the size of a parking spot, and Director Jesberg 
explained that most parklets are four parking spots, with the largest being five.  
 
Mayor Brooks asked if there are any ways for Staff to ensure the construction of parklets is done 
efficiently by business owners, rather than remaining unfinished and tying up a resource that 
could instead be used for parking.  

 
Council Member Bertrand pointed out that allowances for sidewalk seating should also be 
considered.  
 
In public comment, Linda Smith and Carin Hanna spoke in support of a parklet program. Hanna 
said that maintenance of the parklets, with the threat of removal if unused, is important.  

 
Council Member Petersen spoke support for limiting the number of parklets, joining with Santa 
Cruz on prototype designs, using money from the City Manager Unexpected Events fund, and 
requiring some public use hours.  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

 
Council Member Bertrand agreed with these points and reiterated that some flexibility in the 
prototypes allowing for a level of individuality is important.   

 
Vice-Mayor Storey said he agreed with an overall cap on parklets, but not with setting arbitrary 
limits. He encouraged using the business’ interest level guide the limitations and suggested 
shorter lease terms with options for renewal. 
 
Council Member Bertrand suggested the parklets be removed in winter.  

 
Mayor Brooks asked that Staff bring further information to Council in July regarding methods on 
limiting the number of parklets, prototype ideas including winterization, a system for check and 
balances to ensure maintenance and use of the parklets, and different ways of calculating rent.  

 
Council Member Petersen explained her concerns with allowing an unlimited amount of parking 

spaces due to the Coastal Commission and preference for a show of good faith in limiting to 25 
spaces; she also suggested that the Capitola Planning Commission review parklet prototype 
designs before making a motion:  

 

MOTION: INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING DIRECTION AS A PERMANENT 

OUTDOOR DINING PLAN IS DEVELOPED: LIMIT SPACES TO 25, USE 

$10,000 OF CITY MANAGER UNEXPECTED EVENT FUNDS FOR 
PROTO-TYPE DEVELOPMENT, PROPOSE LCP AMENDMENT TO THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION, SET 3 YEAR LEASES, WAIVE PERMIT FEES  

RESULT: AMENDED AS BELOW 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

 
In response to Council Member Bertrand’s question, Director Herlihy explained that while during 
the pandemic the Coastal Commission was tolerant of outdoor dining and parklets, now that the 
emergency is easing they remain concerned with maintaining public access to the coast. 
 
Vice-Mayor Storey said he preferred limiting the amount of spaces based on how many 

businesses are interested, rather than arbitrarily using 25 as a limit.  

 

MOTION: INCORPORATE THE FOLLOWING DIRECTION AS A PERMANENT 

OUTDOOR DINING PLAN IS DEVELOPED: LIMIT SPACES TO 25, USE 
$10,000 FOR CITY MANAGER UNEXPECTED EVENT FUND FOR 
PROTO-TYPE DEVELOPMENT, PROPOSE LCP AMENDMENT TO THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION, SET 3 YEAR LEASES, WAIVE PERMIT FEES 

AMENDMENT: INCLUDE ONLY THE STREETS RECOMMENDED IN STAFF REPORT 

RESULT: ADOPTED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Kristen Petersen, Yvette Brooks 

NOES: Sam Storey  

RECUSED: Margaux Keiser 

 

B. 2021 Summer Events Plan 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

1. Approve the City-sponsored event program as outlined in this report. and  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

2. Provide direction for issuance of other private special event permits. 
 
Assistant to the City Manager Laurent presented a staff report.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 

Council Member Bertrand received confirmation from Assistant Laurent and Chief McManus that 
the City can support and staff the various events as normal.  
 
Mayor Brooks suggested staff use July 14, the date of the first summer event, be the deadline to 
check in on current COVID-19 temporary use permit holders, and to remove unused outdoor 
dining areas.  

 
Council Member Petersen asked how the City would ensure Mega Event requirements are 
followed by the Art and Wine Festival; staff replied that this  the event’s permit would include a 
condition that all state health guidance must be followed.   

 

MOTION: APPROVE THE CITY SPONSORED EVENT PROGRAM AND REQUIRE 

OTHER EVENTS TO FOLLOW STATE HEALTH GUIDANCE AS 
APPROPRIATE 

RESULT: ADOPTED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Kristen Petersen, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks 

RECUSED: Margaux Keiser 

C. Consider a Resolution for the Levy of Capitola Village and Wharf Business 
Improvement Area Assessments for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct the public hearing and adopt the proposed 
Resolution levying the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Capitola Village and Wharf Business 
Improvement Area (CVWBIA) Assessments and accepting the CVWBIA Annual Plan 
and budget. 

 
Vice-Mayor Storey recused himself from this item.  
 

Finance Director Malberg Jim presented the staff report.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked about the in-lieu program, and BIA representative Carin Hanna 
responded that this is an additional cost savings for the group continued from last year. The BIA 
plans to revamp their assessments next year.  
 

There was no public comment.  

 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

MOTION: ADOPT THE RESOLUTION LEVYING THE FY 2021-22 CAPITOLA 

VILLAGE AND WHARF BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 
ASSESSMENTS 

RESULT: ADOPTED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Kristen Petersen, Yvette Brooks 

RECUSED: Sam Storey, Margaux Keiser 

D. Consider the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget and Capital Improvement Program for 
the City of Capitola[330-05/780-30] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the proposed resolution adopting the Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 City Budget and Capital Improvement Program. 

 
Finance Director Malberg presented a staff report.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked about funding allocated to Monterey Park benches, and if the 

funding could be broader for the park in general.   
 
There was no public comment.  

 

MOTION: APPROVE THE RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FY 2021-22 CITY 

BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM, WITH ONE 
CHANGE IDENTIFITYING THE $10,000 TO BE SPEND ON 
IMPROVEMENTS AT MONTEREY PARK IN GENERAL (NOT ONLY FOR 
BENCHES)  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser, Council Member 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

E. Recruitment Process for Chief of Police, and Designation of City Council Members to 
Serve on the Interview Panel 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the proposed recruitment process for Police 
Chief; authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Bob Murray and 
Associates to conduct the recruitment; and designate up to two City Council 
Members to serve on the interview panel. 

 
City Manager Goldstein presented the staff report.  
 
Council Member Keiser asked for about the panels; City Manager Goldstein clarified that 
community forums will be public while the interviews are not.   

 
There was no public comment.  
 
Mayor Brooks asked that an appropriate local equity group be involved in the forum or interview 
panels, and that the BIPOC community be included when looking for community input.  

 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 6 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

MOTION: APPROVE THE PROPOSED RECRUITMENT PROCESS AND NOMINATE 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PETERSEN AND KEISER TO SERVE ON 
INTERVIEW PANEL 

RESULT: ADOPTED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser 

AYES: Kristen Petersen, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

NAYS: Jacques Bertrand 

F. Consider the Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021-2022[390-40] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct the noticed public hearing on the proposed City 
Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 and adopt the proposed Resolution 
amending the current fee schedule. 

 
Director Malberg presented the staff report.  
 
In response to a question from Council Member Petersen, Director Herlihy explained that the 

planning fees are estimated by hourly rates, and applicants are refunded for any portion not used. 
Recreation Division Leader Bryant-LeBlond clarified that there is no increase in cost to the Jr 
Guard program.  
 
Vice-Mayor Storey asked about the in-lieu tree replacement fee, and confirmed that this can only 
be done for qualifying circumstances and not simply an applicant who does not want to replace a 

tree.  
 
Mayor Brooks noted that Cliff Avenue should also be included in the fee schedule regarding 
memorial plaques.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 

MOTION:  ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT FEE SCHEDULE 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

G. Consider Approval of Memoranda of Understanding with Labor Groups and Adopt 
Salary Schedule beginning June 27, 2021 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreements to existing 
Memoranda of Understandings (MOUs) with negotiated changes for: 

a. Confidential Employees Bargaining Group 
2. Approve changes to the Management Compensation Plan 
3. Approve changes to City Manager Employee Contract 
4. Adopt a Resolution approving the new salary schedule 
 
Assistant Laurent presented the staff report.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 7 Updated 6/25/2021 9:43 AM 

WITH THE CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES BARGAINING GROUP, 
APPROVE CHANGES TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION PLAN 
AND THE CITY MANAGER CONTRACT, ADOPT THE RESOLUTION 
APPROVING THE NEW SALARY SCHEDULE  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

 9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was closed at 9:01PM to the next regular meeting of the City Council on July 22, 2021. 

 

   _____________________ 

    Yvette Brooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

DRAFT SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, JUNE 24, 2021 - 9 PM 

 
 

 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL  

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Council Member Kristen Petersen: Remote, Vice Mayor 
Sam Storey: Remote, Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote, Council Member Margaux Keiser: Remote. 

 2. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

  A. Item 4.A – Seven staff provided supporting documents   

 3. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 4. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Consider Approval of Memoranda of Understanding with Labor Groups and Adopt 
Salary Schedule beginning June 27, 2021 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreements to existing Memoranda 
of Understanding (MOU) with negotiated changes for the following groups: 
a. Association of Capitola Employees (ACE). 

b. Mid-Management Employees’ Bargaining Unit. 

2.   Adopt a Resolution approving the new salary schedule. 
 
Assistant to the City Manager Laurent presented a staff report.   
 
There was no public comment.  

 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE ASSOCIATION OF CAPITOLA EMPLOYEES AND MID-
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES BARGAINING GROUP, ADOPT THE 
RESOLUTION APPROCING THE NEW SALARY SCHEDULE 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Margaux Keiser 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

 4. ADJOURNMENT 
  
The meeting was closed at 9:08pm.  

7.A.2

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
June 24, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 7/13/2021 9:35 AM 

   _____________________ 
    Yvette Brooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

7.A.2

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
4-

21
 d

ra
ft

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated June 4, June 11, June 18, June 25, and 
July 2.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

Account: City Main

Date Starting Check # Ending Check #
Payment 

Count
Amount

6/4/2021 98086 98124 43 $       154,695.12

6/11/2021 98125 98170 53 $       178,219.19

6/18/2021 98171 98202 32 $         77,141.10

6/25/2021 98203 98279 83 $       191,926.78

7/2/2021 98280 98325 49 $       170,349.49

The main account check register dated May 28, 2021, ended with check #98085.

Account: Library

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

6/11/2021 273 273 1 $           2,220.00

6/18/2021 274 274 1 $  1,158.13

6/25/201 275 277 3 $         50,607.07

7/2/2021 278 279 2 $         18,500.00

The library account check register dated May 28, 2021, ended with check #272.

Account: Payroll

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

6/4/2021 17110 17198 91 $       164,585.15

6/8/2021 5717 5717 1 $                57.88

6/18/2021 17199 17307 110 $       178,610.33

7/2/2021 17308 17423 120 $       192,445.85

The payroll account check register dated May 21, 2021, ended with EFT #17109. 

Following is a list of payments issued for more than $10,000 and descriptions of the expenditures:

7.B

Packet Pg. 30



Approval of City Check Registers 
July 22, 2021

Check/
EFT

Issued to Dept Description Amount

98100
Family Service Agency of 

the Central Coast
CM Community grant program $   12,761.82

98115
Santa Cruz County Human 

Services
CM

Homeless action partnership 
cost share

$   20,000.00

1144 CalPERS Health CM June health insurance $   57,155.64

98130
Burke Williams & 

Sorensen
CM April legal services $   23,865.50

98161
Santa Cruz County 
Auditor-Controller

PD May citation processing $   11,170.50

1145
CalPERS Member 

Services
FN

PERS contributions PPE 
5/29/21

$   53,557.16

1147 IRS FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

5/29/21
$   28,183.64

98173 Grey Bears CD
CDBG grant program 

subrecipient
$   15,725.00

98187 Moffatt and Nichol PW
Wharf permitting & design, 

groin & flume permitting, bid 
support

$   14,247.50

98194
Soquel Creek Water 

District
PW Water service $   11,885.60

98202 Wells Fargo CM May credit card charges $   10,007.40

98222
Central Fire Protection 

District
REC Lifeguard training $   16,000.00

98247 PG&E PW Gas & electricity $   15,169.17

1153
CalPERS Member 

Services
FN

PERS contributions PPE 
6/12/21

$   53,777.06

1155 IRS FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

6/12/21
$   28,990.23

277 Otto Construction Inc. PW Library construction $   47,013.55

98287
Burke Williams & 

Sorensen
CM May legal services $   23,670.50

98289 Cresco Equipment Rentals PW
Beach/Lagoon equipment 

rental
$   11,139.50

98298 Granite Rock Company PW
Flume and jetty retention 

release
$   23,193.85

1158 CalPERS Health CM July health insurance $   57,155.64

278 Bear Electrical Solutions PW Clares & Wharf Rd. speed sign $   16,700.00

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 6-4-21 Check Register
2. 6-11-21 Check Register
3. 6-18-21 Check Register
4. 6-25-21 Check Register
5. 7-2-21 Check Register

7.B

Packet Pg. 31



Approval of City Check Registers 
July 22, 2021

Report Prepared By:  Mark Sullivan
Senior Accountant

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.B

Packet Pg. 32



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-4
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
1-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
8-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
8-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
8-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
8-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-1
8-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

-2
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.5

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Community Grants Strategic Plan Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with Optimal 
Solutions Consulting for $29,400 to develop a strategic plan to implement the process 
improvements to the Capitola Community Grant Program approved by the Council on February 
13, 2020. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Community Grant Program (CGP) has historically helped fund
more than 30 community organizations in Santa Cruz County.  

In July 2019, the City issued a Request for Proposal for a review of the CGP. The City awarded 
the contract to Optimal Solutions Consulting (OSC) to review the City’s Community Grant 
Program (CGP) and recommend process improvements to better meet the needs of the City 
and the community.

OSC presented its recommendations at the February 13, 2020 City Council meeting and 
Council directed staff to proceed with an incremental change approach, including:

• Revising the application;

• Developing a data-driven process;

• Reviewing allocation and reporting methods;

• Aligning priorities with community needs; and

• Possibly working with other funders.

The COVID-19 pandemic paused progress on most of these items and the overall program, as 
the fiscal year 2020-21 budget did not include funding for the CGP. Council approved a reduced 
funding amount for the CGP at the mid-year budget review and asked that the revised 
application be used at that time.

The City Council approved the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget with funding for the CGP strategic
plan, with the intention of paying for the recommended changes to the CGP program.

DISCUSSION: Optimum Solutions Consulting has submitted a proposal to create a strategic 
plan for the CGP to implement the changes approved by City Council.  

The process to create a strategic plan will include the following.

• Reviewing and compiling existing data,

• Convening stakeholder input sessions with community-based organizations,

7.C

Packet Pg. 67



Strategic Plan Contract 
July 22, 2021

• Creating a Community Profile,

• Facilitating focus groups,

• Developing funding allocation strategies,

• Identifying opportunities to work with other funders,

• Facilitating study sessions with Councilmembers, and

• Assisting with implementation.

The planned work would be completed in time for the 2022-23 fiscal year CGP funding cycle.  

FISCAL IMPACT: The Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget includes funding for preparation of the 
proposed strategic plan.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Capitola Community Grants Strategic Plan- OSC SOW

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.C

Packet Pg. 68



Optimal Solutions Consulting  1 

 

City of Capitola Community Grants Program 
Proposal to Implement Recommended Process 
Improvements 
Submitted June 4, 2021 

Background 
In July 2019, the City of Capitola (the City) contracted with Optimal Solutions Consulting (OSC) to 
review the City’s Community Grant Program (CGP) and recommend process improvements in 
order to better meet the needs of the City and the community. The review was initiated at the 
request of the City Council, in recognition that the structure of the CGP application, award, and 
reporting processes has made it difficult to determine the impact of the City’s investments on the 
Capitola community.  

The consulting team of Nicole Young (OSC) and Nicole Lezin, Cole Communications 
(subcontractor to OSC) reviewed existing CGP materials, researched examples of similar grant 
programs, and met with or interviewed City staff, Councilmembers, and a small sample of 
grantees. This review generated several insights about the strengths and challenges of the 
current process for awarding funds, as well as opportunities for improvement and greater impact. 
OSC presented the key findings and recommendations for improving the CGP to the City Council 
in February 2020, and the Council approved the recommended incremental change approach, 
directing staff to: 

• Revise the program application 
• Develop a data-driven process 
• Review the allocation and reporting, and 
• Align priorities and consider working with other funders. 

 
Staff updated the Community Grant application as recommended, but implementation of the 
remaining recommendations—and the CGP itself—had to be paused due to COVID-19. In the 
Spring of 2021, the City reopened the Community Grant application process for the remainder of 
Fiscal Year 2020-21, and included funds for the CGP in the Fiscal 2021-22 budget. 

The City is now ready to resume its efforts to implement recommended CGP improvements to 
and has requested assistance from OSC. This proposal reflects the Council’s previous direction 
to make incremental changes, as well as newer developments in the countywide Collective of 
Results and Evidence-based (CORE) Investments movement (e.g., an online CORE Results Menu 
linked to community-level impacts and indicators) and concurrent strategic conversations 
occurring among local funders as the County and City of Santa Cruz prepare for the next CORE 
Investments funding cycle.  

 

 

 

7.C.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

G
ra

n
ts

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

- 
O

S
C

 S
O

W
  (

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Optimal Solutions Consulting  2 

Proposed Scope of Work & Budget 
The proposed budget is based on an hourly consultant fee of $175/hour. The tasks, hours, and 
costs described in the tables below are estimated for the purpose of this bid and represent the 
anticipated maximum based on current information. Actual tasks, hours, and costs may be 
increased or decreased during contract negotiation and/or as the project progresses, based on 
mutual agreement between the consultant and client.   

Tasks Timeline & Est. Hrs Est. Cost 
1. Review and compile existing data, including: 

• Citywide data from DataShare SCC, City staff, and 
other sources 

• Current CGP grant materials 
• City’s budget and revenue streams  

July – Aug 2021 
16 hrs 

$2,800 

2. Convene stakeholder input sessions with community-
based organizations and other local/regional funders to 
gather input and share best practices and lessons 
learned about data-driven priority-setting, grant 
applications, funding allocation methodologies, and 
reporting processes, and operationalizing equity in 
funding processes (via CORE Investments consultation 
for the County) 

July – Sept 2021 No charge 
 

(Est. value 
$20,000) 

3. Create a Community Profile (brief handout or 
infographic) summarizing data on community strengths 
and needs, how the City’s investments align with the 
eight CORE Conditions for Health and Well-being and 
related community indicators, and current/potential 
opportunities to leverage CGP funds; Review and finalize 
with City staff 

Sept 2021 
24 hrs 

$4,200 

4. Plan and facilitate up to three (3) 90-minute focus groups 
(and/or surveys) with City residents, business owners, and 
other partners/stakeholders invited by the City to hear the 
community’s perspective about priorities for Capitola’s 
CGP 
• Use Community Profile as discussion tool 
• Prepare summary of themes 

Oct – Nov 2021 
30 hrs 

$5,250 

5. Develop more detailed descriptions of up to three (3) 
potential Community Grant funding allocation strategies 
that would support the Council’s selected priorities.  

Oct – Nov 2021 
16 hrs 

$2,800 

6. Identify opportunities for the City of Capitola to align with 
(complement) and/or co-invest with other funders in 
shared priorities that encompass Capitola and other 
parts of the County (via CORE Investments consultation 
for the County), 

Oct – Nov 2021 
 

No charge 
 

(Est. value 
$1,400) 

7.C.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

G
ra

n
ts

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

- 
O

S
C

 S
O

W
  (

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



Optimal Solutions Consulting  3 

Tasks Timeline & Est. Hrs Est. Cost 
7. Plan and facilitate a half-day retreat (or a series of shorter 

study sessions) with City Councilmembers and staff to 
learn about and discuss potential changes to the 
Community Grant funding allocation strategies. 
• Use Community Profile and summary of input 

session(s) to facilitate discussion on community 
strengths, needs, and priorities 

• Gauge which funding allocation strategies 
Councilmembers are interested in exploring  

• Prepare summary of Council’s decisions about 
priorities and funding allocation strategies to explore, 
including slide deck and suggested talking points 

Dec 2021 – Jan 2022 
50 hrs 

$8,750 

8. Assist City staff with adapting CGP application, review, 
and reporting processes for the new funding cycle, 
based on the Council’s agreements about priorities and 
funding allocation strategies.  

Jan – Mar 2022 
32 hrs 

$5,600 

Subtotal 168 $29,400 
 

 

7.C.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

G
ra

n
ts

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

- 
O

S
C

 S
O

W
  (

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Coordination Project Authorization to Advertise for 
Construction Bids

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for the 41st Avenue 
Adaptive Signal Control project (estimated at $420,000) and authorize advertising for 
construction bids.

BACKGROUND: Public Works staff has been working with the Monterey Unified Air Pollution 
Control District (Air Board) to install an adaptive signal control system along 41st Avenue. The 
Air Board has granted funds for the installation of signal coordination software for City-controlled 
traffic signals at the 41st Avenue intersections at Clares Street, the Mall entrance, Capitola 
Road, and Jade/Brommer. Funds have also been granted to tie-in the State operated 
intersections at the northbound Highway 1 ramp, southbound Highway 1 ramp, and Gross 
Road. The plans and specifications for the work on the City-owned signals have been 
completed by the consulting engineers Kimley-Horn. The engineer’s estimate for this work is 
$420,000. 

City staff is working with the State for their approval of the Highway 1 intersection work; 
however, the State has not yet approved the project and it is unlikely approval will be received 
soon. Due to the delays in the State approvals, staff recommends moving forward with the City 
intersections. When and if State approval is received, staff will evaluate options to complete that 
work. This project is also being coordinated with the County of Santa Cruz Public Works 
Department, which is completing a similar project along the Soquel Drive corridor.  

DISCUSSION: The project schedule is as follows:

Plan Approval July 22, 2021 
Bid Opening August 18, 2021 
Contract Award August 26, 2021 
Construction Start October 2021

A reduced set of plans and the construction estimate are attached.  A full set of plans and the 
specifications are available for review on site at the Public Works Department.

FISCAL IMPACT: The project budget is as follows:

Revenue:  Total Air Board Grant $ 760,000 

7.D

Packet Pg. 72



Signal Coordination 
July 22, 2021

Gas Tax fund $  25,000 
Total $ 785,000

Expenses: Construction $ 420,000 – City intersection only
Engineering and reporting $ 125,000
Total $ 545,000

The remaining fund balance will be held for installation of the signal coordination system in the 
State intersections, upon the State’s approval of the equipment.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Final Cost Estimate
2. 41st Ave Adaptive Traffic Signal System Plans

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.D

Packet Pg. 73



FINAL

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total
1 Traffic Control 1 LS $17,095 $17,095
2 Mobilization 1 LS $10,257 $10,257
3 Temporary Water Pollution Control 1 LS $10,257 $10,257
4 Utility Potholing 12 EA $1,200 $14,400
5 Furnish and Install Adaptive Traffic Signal System 1 LS $200,000 $200,000
6 Furnish and Install Category 6 Cable 2400 LF $5 $12,000
7 Furnish and Install No. 14 AWG Conductors 1,700 LF $3 $5,100
8 Furnish and Install Ethernet Extender Device 4 EA $4,000 $16,000
9 Furnish and Install Camera Mounting Hardware 16 EA $500 $8,000
10 Furnish and Install 3” Schedule 80 PVC Conduit 350 LF $150 $52,500
11 Furnish and Install Caltrans No. 5 Pull Box 6 EA $800 $4,800
12 Furnish and Install wireless 4G Cellular Modem 2 EA $2,000 $4,000
13 Furnish and Install 2-cell Flexible Fabric Innerduct   1,700 LF $14 $23,800
14 Minor Concrete 450 SF $90 $40,500

Construction Estimate $420,000 Rounded

City of Capitola
41st Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal System

                    Opinioin of Probable Construction Costs

7.D.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 C
o

st
 E

st
im

at
e 

 (
S

ig
n

al
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
io

n
)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



7.D.2

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



N
O

T 
TO

 S
C

A
LE

7.D.2

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

 A
d

ap
ti

ve
 T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 S

ys
te

m
 P

la
n

s 
 (

S
ig

n
al

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution Allocating the 2021/22 Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account Funds 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution allocating the 2021/22 Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funds to engineering and construction of a 
pavement management program project.

BACKGROUND: Senate Bill 1, known as SB 1 or the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account (RMRA), was signed into law in April 2017 to address the State’s basic road 
maintenance and critical safety needs. In fiscal year 2021/22 staff estimates Capitola will 
receive $193,401 from RMRA. 

SB 1 requires the City submit a resolution indicating how the City’s RMRA allocation will be 
used for the following fiscal year. 

DISCUSSION: On June 10, 2021, City Council approved a series of road resurfacing projects 
utilizing SB 1, RTC Measure D, and Regional Transportation Improvement Project funds. The 
following streets were identified for improvements:

42nd Avenue - Capitola Road to Jade Street
Diamond Street - 42nd Avenue to 45th Avenue
Ruby Court - Entire length
Clares Street - Wharf Road to 41st Avenue
Bay Avenue - Highway 1 to Capitola Avenue
Fanmar Avenue - Entire length

The attached resolution contains specific language required by the SB 1 program, and includes 
the projects identified above. Upon approval by the City Council, the resolution will be submitted 
to the State for their approval.

FISCAL IMPACT: This allocation of $193,401 SB 1 RMRA funding is consistent with the 
adopted 2021/22 fiscal year budget. 

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg

7.E

Packet Pg. 86



Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations 
July 22, 2021

Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.E

Packet Pg. 87



Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations 
July 22, 2021

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 FUNDED BY 
SENATE BILL 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 
(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and signed into law by the 
Governor in April 2017 to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls 
statewide; and 

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure 
the residents of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and 
which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal 
year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, 
which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, the City will receive an estimated $194,178 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 
2021/22 from SB 1; and

WHEREAS, this is the fifth year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and will 
enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility 
options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and 

WHEREAS, the City has undergone a public process to ensure public input into our 
community’s transportation priorities/the project list; and 

WHEREAS, the City completed an update to the pavement management program in 
2017 to develop the SB 1 project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-
priority and cost-effective projects that also meet the City’s priorities for transportation 
investment; and 

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City complete needed pavement 
management improvement projects; and

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 
infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will provide a 
dedicated source of funding for roadway projects.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola, State of California, as follows:

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.
2. The following list of proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with Fiscal Year 

2021/22 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues: 

Project Title Description Location Schedule Useful Life
42nd Avenue Rubber Cape 

Seal
Capitola Road 
to Jade Street

Fall/Spring 
21/22

15-20 years

Bay Avenue Slurry seal with Highway 1 to Fall/Spring 10-15 years

7.E

Packet Pg. 88



Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations 
July 22, 2021

dig outs Monterey Ave 21/22
Clares Street Recycle 

asphalt, 2-inch
overlay

Wharf Rd – 41st 

Ave
Summer/Fall 
21/22

20-30 years

Diamond Street Rubber Cape
Seal

42nd Avenue to 
45th Ave

Fall/Spring 
21/22

15-20 years

Ruby Court Rubber Cape 
Seal

entire length Fall/Spring 
21/22

15-20 years

Fanmar Way Rubber Cape 
Seal

Capitola Ave to 
Monterey Ave

Fall/Spring 
21/22

15-20 years

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 22nd day of July, 
2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

____________________________
Yvette Brooks, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk

7.E

Packet Pg. 89



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Receive Update on Pandemic Response

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the worldwide 
spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 adopted by the City 
Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to continue action.

BACKGROUND: In December 2019, an outbreak of a respiratory illness linked to the novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19) was first identified. In March 2020, the State of California, the County 
of Santa Cruz, and the City of Capitola each declared a state of emergency due to the virus. 
Also in March, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. 

Since March 2020, State and local health officers have issued health orders to stop the spread 
of COVID-19; in Santa Cruz County this included March, April, and May 2020 Shelter-In-Place 
orders that were more restrictive than statewide guidance. Since then, the County Health Officer 
has incorporated all Orders of the State Public Health Officer, which set baseline statewide 
restrictions on travel business activities. 

Since the beginning of the pandemic more than 33 million COVID-19 cased have been reported 
and more than 606,000 people have died from the virus in the United States alone. 

In California, 63,598 deaths have been reported; there were 65 deaths due to COVID-19 on 
Thursday, July 15. According to data from July 15, the average new case count in California per 
100k is 5.4.

As of early July 2021, four million people worldwide have died of COVID-19. 

Limited Restrictions Required Until October 1, 2021

California moved Beyond the Blueprint on June 15. The tier system has been eliminated, and 
normal operations can resume in nearly all business sectors. There are no longer capacity 
limitations or physical distancing requirements, and for fully vaccinated people mask 
requirements have been significantly relaxed. 

Restrictions Applying to Indoor & Outdoor Settings

Vaccine Verification/Negative Testing Indoor Mega Event: required

Outdoor Mega Event: recommended

Capacity Limitations None 

8.A

Packet Pg. 90



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 29 
July 22, 2021

Physical Distancing None 

Masking Fully Vaccinated People: no requirements in 
most settings

Un-Vaccinated People: required when indoors 

Travelers Subject to CDC recommendations and any 
current CDPH travel advisories 

Vaccine Status 

According to state data recorded on July 13, more than 42 million COVID-19 vaccine doses 
have been administered in the State of California. 60.6% of Californians over the age of 12 are 
fully vaccinated and 9.3% are partially vaccinated. There is an average vaccination rate of about 
55,664 doses per day. All Californians aged 12 and older are eligible for a vaccination. The 
State has 4,428,002 vaccine doses on hand, the equivalent to 80 days of inventory. 

As of July 13, Santa Cruz County had administered 344,301 doses of the vaccine.

Local Case Numbers and Statistics

As of June 18, there were 16,232 known COVID-19 cases in Santa Cruz County; of these, 461
were in the City of Capitola. Now nearly a month later, there are 16,351 total known cases (with 
469 in Capitola). On July 12, there were 78 active known cases in Santa Cruz County; just a few 
days later, on June 15, that number had grown to 91 active cases. Back in June, the active case 
count was 48. 

In Santa Cruz County, the rate of new cases per day per 100k is at 2.1 and rising (in 
comparison, this number was 0.7 on June 18). As of July 15, there is one hospitalized COVID-
19 patient, and three ICU beds still available, in our County. 

Delta Variant

As stated by the World Health Organization (WHO), “all viruses, including SARS-CoV-2, the 
virus that causes COVID-19, change over time. Most changes have little to no impact on the 
virus’ properties. However, some changes may affect the virus’s properties, such as how 
easily it spreads, the associated disease severity, or the performance of vaccines, therapeutic 
medicines, diagnostic tools, or other public health and social measures”. One of several variants 
on SARS-CoV-2 is of particular concern, known as the Delta Variant. 

Health professionals are concerned about the Delta variant because it is highly infectious and 
may cause more severe illness. Delta is believed to be the most transmissible variant yet and 
could be 50% more contagious than the original virus. Studies have also shown that people 
infected with the Delta variant are roughly twice as likely to be hospitalized as those infected 
with Alpha. Dr. Fauci has described the Delta variant as “the greatest threat in the U.S. to our 
attempt to eliminate COVID-19”. 

The WHO designated Delta a variant of interest on April 4, 2021, and a variant of concern on 
May 11, 2021.  As of July 13, the Delta variant is now the dominant strain of the coronavirus in 
the United States. Health organizations maintain that complete vaccination is highly effective 
against the Delta variant, and the variant is proven to be particularly dominant in areas of the 
U.S. with lower vaccination rates. 

8.A

Packet Pg. 91



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 29 
July 22, 2021

On July 1, public health officials in Los Angeles County urged residents to again wear masks 
indoors (regardless of vaccination status), due to a rise in COVID-19 cases involving the Delta 
variant. On July 16, the Los Angeles County Public Health Officer announced that due to 
increased transmission masks will be required indoors regardless of vaccination status 
beginning at midnight on July 17. 

On June 29, Santa Cruz County Public Health announced that a sample collected locally on 
June 10 was identified as the Delta variant. 

DISCUSSION: City Hall has been open to the public since June 2020 in one configuration or 
another, dependent upon applicable health guidance and local COVID-19 case levels. Current 
City Hall operations are business as usual, with masking requested of those unvaccinated. 

At the June 24 meeting Mayor Brooks suggested the Capitola City Council and staff continue to 
meet virtually for as long as permitted; with the first in-person meeting taking place on October 
14 (the current Governor’s Order allows for continued remote meetings through September 30). 
Some local jurisdictions will begin meeting in-person in August, though Scotts Valley intends to 
do so beginning in October.  

If major changes occur between the date of agenda publication and the City Council meeting, 
further updates on the regional and local coronavirus response will be provided in a verbal 
report at the meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Fiscal impacts from the pandemic have been accounted for in the updated FY 
20/21 Budget. Those impacts are being reviewed on a quarterly basis by the City Council. In 
addition, the City Council has set aside $600,000 to help ensure the City has available 
resources should the pandemic result in further unforeseen impacts. 

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.A

Packet Pg. 92



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider Capitola Village Banners Design

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Capitola Village Banners as recommended by the 
Capitola Art and Cultural Commission in partnership with the Capitola Beach and Village 
Improvement Association.

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Association (BIA) has 
been preparing proposed Banners for submission to the City, to ultimately hang in the Village to 
promote local businesses and improve the visitor experience in Capitola, for several months. 
The banner designs were first submitted to Council at the April 8, 2021, meeting. At that 
meeting Council directed the BIA to bring the banners to the Capitola Art and Cultural 
Commission for detailed review and recommendation before any determination would be made 
by Council. 

At the April 13 Art and Cultural Commission meeting, the Commission gave feedback to the BIA 
on the banners and offered to form a subcommittee to work with the BIA. At the May 11 Art and 
Cultural Commission meeting, the Commission formed a banner subcommittee to collaborate 
with the BIA on a joint Village Banner Project. At the June meeting, the Commission approved a 
$600 stipend for Evelyn Jenkins Drew to create banner artwork and requested the pilot project 
be added to the agenda of the July 13, 2021, Commission meeting.

DISCUSSION: The BIA and the banner subcommittee worked together to create a design that 
would meet the goals of both groups while remaining visually appealing. The proposed project 
would include installing three or four banner designs on twelve to fifteen lamp posts in Capitola 
Village, depending on the number of art pieces selected. There are approximately 25 lamp 
posts in the village with the ability to have the banners installed. Each lamp post can 
accommodate two banners.

Each lamppost would have two banners, hanging to the road and sidewalk sides of the post. 
Artwork will be on one side, with the BIA slogan and the BIA website on the other.  As presented 
to the Art and Cultural Commission all banner artwork was located on the road side of the post 
and the BIA information on the sidewalk side.  Since that meeting, the BIA has proposed 
alternating which side of the post includes the artwork. Staff does not believe this change 
significantly impacts the project.

Staff is proposing that costs for the banners be split evenly between the BIA and the City, using 
public art funding. The BIA will provide the hardware and the City will install.

At the July 13, 2021, meeting, the Art and Cultural Commission recommended the designs for 

8.B

Packet Pg. 93



Capitola Village Banners 
July 22, 2021

consideration by the City Council. If approved, the banners will be installed this August and 
remain until the holiday season wreaths are installed in November. Proofs of the design are 
being finalized and are now included in the revised packet as of July 19, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated total cost of the project is between $3600 and $4600 
depending on the final number of banners. The City cost for Fiscal Year 2020-21 will be 
between $1800 and $2300 from the Public Art Fund. The Public Art Fund has sufficient Fiscal 
Year 2021-22 budget to cover this cost.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Village Banners Proof

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.B

Packet Pg. 94



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

ill
ag

e 
B

an
n

er
s 

P
ro

o
f 

 (
C

ap
it

o
la

 V
ill

ag
e 

B
an

n
er

s)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

ill
ag

e 
B

an
n

er
s 

P
ro

o
f 

 (
C

ap
it

o
la

 V
ill

ag
e 

B
an

n
er

s)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

ill
ag

e 
B

an
n

er
s 

P
ro

o
f 

 (
C

ap
it

o
la

 V
ill

ag
e 

B
an

n
er

s)



8.B.1

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

ill
ag

e 
B

an
n

er
s 

P
ro

o
f 

 (
C

ap
it

o
la

 V
ill

ag
e 

B
an

n
er

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Parklet Program Update

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on additional details about the future village 
outdoor dining parklet program and extend the COVID-19 temporary use permits allowing for
outdoor dining on Capitola Avenue, Monterey Avenue, and Lawn Way through September 13, 
2021.

BACKGROUND: In response to the COVID-19 pandemic and the ensuing social distancing
orders, the City issued temporary use permits to local restaurants to provide outdoor dining. On 
April 22, 2021, City Council extended the termination date of the COVID-19 temporary use 
permits to September 7, 2021. At that same meeting, Council also directed staff to develop a 
program for permanent outdoor dining parklets in Capitola Village, and to bring the program 
back to Council for review and possible adoption. 

On June 24, Staff presented data and background on a permanent parklet program and 
reviewed key elements that could be included in a program. Staff also provided City Council the 
results of two public surveys. Council directed staff to proceed with a permanent outdoor dining 
program, provided direction on key program elements, and requested staff bring additional 
information to the next meeting on the following topics:

• Method to allocate parklets, given the proposed cap on total parking spaces devoted to 
the program

• Coastal Commission recommendation for shared private/public use

• Maintenance requirements

• Safety

• Program timing

• Winterization 

DISCUSSION: The following table includes the direction provided by the City Council at the 
June 24, 2021, meeting: 

City Council Direction on Key Program Elements

Overall 
Cap

• Limit number of parking spaces allocated to the program to 25 (~50% of 
existing)

8.C

Packet Pg. 99



Outdoor Dining Update 
July 22, 2021

• Limit businesses to spaces fronting their businesses
• Have staff develop a method of allocating spaces to interested 

businesses

Parklet
Design

• Allocate up to $10,000 for prototype designs that can be administratively 
approved 

• Require PC approval for custom designs

Fees • Set City permit fees at zero
• Provide no construction assistance to businesses
• Charge rent space of $3,400/parking space per year with annual CPI 

adjustment

Lease 
Term

• 3 years

Streets • Allow outdoor dining on all streets in Village and on the sidewalk on 
Monterey Avenue and the Wharf, where sidewalk widths allow.

• Exclude Lawn Way

Method for Allocating the 25 Parking Spaces to be used for Parklets
City Council directed staff to limit the total number of parking spaces to be used for outdoor 
dining to 25 spaces, which would likely provide enough outdoor dining for those restaurants who 
responded favorably to the survey and indicated they would participate in a future program. To 
ensure equal opportunity for all restaurants to participate, staff suggests using a lottery system. 
The details of a lottery system would be drafted into a future policy, but at a minimum would 
include the following steps:  

Step 1. Open application period for 45 days, with a required $500 deposit per space 
(credited towards maintenance deposit).

Step 2. If the total requests are less than 25, award the spaces to the applicants. 
Step 3. If the total requests exceed 25, assign one or two spaces to each applicant. Hold 

a lottery for the remainder of the spaces for those requesting additional spaces.

Coastal Commission Recommendation for Shared Private/Public Use
During the June 24 Council Meeting, staff introduced Coastal Commission concerns about long-
term authorization of outdoor dining programs in coastal areas. The Commission’s concerns are 
related to the Coastal Act’s goal of maximizing public access and public recreation. Coastal 
Commission staff has indicated that they believe outdoor dining essentially converts public 
space, which would otherwise be used to access the coast, to private space. A permanent 
outdoor dining program would require Coastal Commission certification of the City’s Local 
Coastal Plan (LCP).

To receive Coastal Commission certification, mitigation for public access concerns raised by 
Coastal staff will have to be incorporated into the outdoor dining program. Initially, Coastal staff 
suggested that appropriate mitigation could be maximizing public access by allowing the public 
to utilize the outdoor dining areas during off-hours. City Council asked for more information on 
the Coastal Commission’s recommendation for shared public and private use of the outdoor 
dining. City staff requested additional information from Coastal staff, specifically if they could 
explain how a public/private dining deck would be managed and examples of existing programs. 

8.C

Packet Pg. 100



Outdoor Dining Update 
July 22, 2021

Coastal staff provided the local example of Aldo’s on the Santa Cruz Wharf; however, they no 
longer recommend this strategy of shared private/public space due to the ongoing monitoring 
and enforcement issues they have experienced with this type of program.   

Coastal staff suggested the following measures to help minimize impacts, and to mitigate the 
impacts to public access/recreation to the maximum extent feasible: 

1. Reduce the overall amount of displaced parking spaces from what was originally 
permitted with COVID-19 temporary use permits;

2. Initiate the program with temporary (i.e., 1-5 year) authorization that requires a Coastal 
Development Permit (CDP) extension, thereby building in the opportunity to re-evaluate 
the program once it has been operating, making any changes desired or necessary, and 
ensuring LCP/Coastal Act consistency. 

a. Issue one CDP for the entire outdoor dining program as opposed to individual 
CDPs for each business.

3. Use funds from outdoor dining to reinvest in coastal access including the shuttle 
program, coastal park beautification, coastal access signage, new bike racks, sidewalk 
improvements, maintenance of existing parking, etc. 

The direction provided by City Council at the June 24 meeting is aligned with recommendations 
one and two above. The number of outdoor dining spaces will be capped at 25, which is 
approximately half the number of spaces allowed under the COVID-19 temporary use permit 
program. Also, Council directed staff to implement a maximum lease term of three years. This 
will allow enough time to see how the program is operating and adjust as necessary.   

The third Coastal Commission staff recommendation of earmarking funds for coastal access 
programs and improvements does raise potential issues as the current revenue from parking 
meters is unrestricted and can be used for general City purposes. However, the City currently 
allocates more than $800,000 per year for coastal access-related programs. If all 25 spaces are 
ultimately leased, the parklet program would generate $85,000 per year, and could be used to 
fund roughly 11% of the City’s annual coastal access-related expenditures.

Maintenance
All restaurants participating in a future outdoor dining program will be subject to a lease 
agreement and a deposit. The lease agreement will include provisions requiring the outdoor 
dining decks be maintained and kept clean. Should a parklet not be maintained, the City would 
first provide courtesy noticing to the owner and elevate enforcement, including fining the owner, 
as needed. Ultimately, the lease agreement will be drafted to give the City the authority to 
remove the dining deck should the restaurant owner fail to follow the requirements in the 
agreement and the cost of removal will be covered with the deposit. 

Safety
The image below is of Lupulo’s dining deck in the City of Santa Cruz. The design includes 
safety features with bollards and placement on a concrete slab. There is also a bike rack that 
further protects the deck.

8.C

Packet Pg. 101



Outdoor Dining Update 
July 22, 2021

During the pandemic, many restaurants utilized temporary construction barriers for safety, like 
the orange water-filled barriers previously used at the entrance to the Esplande. While these 
barriers are effective, they do not reflect the design quality expected by our community. Many 
semi-permanent parklets in other communities are protected with large planters, which function 
similarly to the water-filled barriers in terms of safety and separation, with the added benefit of 
plants and quality finishes to create a more visually pleasing experience for customers sitting 
along an active street. 
 

The use of planters, bollards, and bike racks to provide a measure of protection to the outdoor 
dining areas will be incorporated into the prototype designs and be a requirement of any custom 
design developed.

Program timing
The existing COVID-19 temporary use permits will expire on Monday, September 7, 2021
(subject to modification based on the information presented in the Extension section below). 
The businesses who currently have temporary outdoor dining are required to remove all 
infrastructure prior to September 7. Also on September 7, parking spaces currently being used 
for outdoor dining will return to their use as parking spaces. The September 7 deadline was 
selected to ensure adequate preparation time for the Capitola Art and Wine festival, which will 
be held on September 11 and 12.

Staff anticipates the permanent outdoor dining program can launch early in 2022, upon 
certification by the California Coastal Commission. 

July 21 Aug 21 Sept 21 Oct 21 Nov 21 Dec 21 Jan 22 Feb 22
COVID-19 Temporary 

Use Permits 
(Exp. Sept. 7)

No outdoor dining program

New 
Program

City Adopts 
Ordinance

Coastal Commission Certifies 
Ordinance

Launch

Winterization options

8.C

Packet Pg. 102



Outdoor Dining Update 
July 22, 2021

During the cooler seasons, restaurants often winterize outdoor dining areas to keep patrons 
comfortable. There are many options to winterize space, including portable propane heaters and 
firepits, fixed wall mounted heaters, retractable awnings, and fully enclosed tents. There are 
trade-offs to these options as many of the heating options are not compatible with the awning 
and tent options due to fire risk. During the pandemic, most businesses chose to utilize portable 
propane heaters, rather than tents, due to fire risk and the costs associated with tents. If a 
business proposes a permanent outdoor dining deck, the application must include a building 
plan that includes the proposed lighting, heating, and covered structures, for City review. 

The City Council authorized staff to collaborate with the City of Santa Cruz on high quality 
prototype dining deck designs that can be approved administratively. Winterization options can 
be incorporated into the prototype designs. The City of Los Gatos has three prototype dining 
deck designs with options for shade including umbrellas, fabric sail shades, or retractable fabric 
solar shades as shown in the three images below:

Portable propane heaters are common heat solutions used in outdoor dining designs. Heating 
sources that require electricity are not as common in outdoor dining due to the challenges of 
running power across a sidewalk to a dining deck located within the street. Power on the ground 
can create a trip hazard, while overhead wires create clutter.  

Tents and similar enclosed structures can provide protection from wind and rain. During the 
pandemic, some restaurants built uniqe structures for patrons to dine in, such as the transparent 
igloos shown below. Under the COVID-19 temporary use permits, Capitola limited tent design to 
standard white tents with specific weight requirements to allow administrative approval.     

8.C

Packet Pg. 103



Outdoor Dining Update 
July 22, 2021

 

COVID-19 Temporary Use Permit Program Extension
The 2021 Capitola Art and Wine Festival will be held on September 11 and 12. The Chamber of 
Commerce plans to host a scaled-back festival with fewer artists and food vendors. With more 
space available on the street, the Chamber supports the temporary outdoor dining continuing on 
Capitola Avenue, Lawn Way, and Monterey Avenue, as it offers additional seating and dining 
options for festival participants. The Chamber is requesting the outdoor dining be removed 
along the Esplanade and San Jose Avenue as it would interfere with the necessary site 
planning for the festival.  

The temporary outdoor dining is linked to Emergency Order no. 4-2020. Should the City Council 
choose to extend the outdoor dining, the current Emergency Order will have to remain active for 
one additional week. Staff recommends a six-day extension of the current temporary program 
on Monterey Ave, Lawn Way and Capitola Ave to allow the temporary outdoor dining program in 
those locations to be used during the Art and Wine Festival.

FISCAL IMPACT: The full fiscal impact of the outdoor dining program depends on the final 
program details.  

Report Prepared By:  Katie Herlihy
Community Development Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.C

Packet Pg. 104



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Authorize the Advertisement of Construction Bids for the Wharf Rehabilitation 
Project - Phase 1

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for construction for 
the Wharf Rehabilitation Project, Phase 1 (estimated cost $482,500), and authorize Public 
Works to advertise for construction bids.  

BACKGROUND: The plans and specifications for Phase 1 of the Wharf Resiliency and Public 
Access Improvement Project have been completed by consulting engineer Moffatt and Nichol.  
This project will repair the steel piles at the head of the wharf, by encasing them in a new host 
pipe and backfilling the entire pile with slurry; and repair the wharf structure underneath the 
restaurant where two piles were lost this winter. The engineer’s estimate for the project is 
$482,500. This project is part of the larger wharf project that will widen the trestle portion of the 
wharf and other improvements that is scheduled for next year. It is necessary to complete the 
Phase 1 scope of work to protect the head of the wharf before winter.

DISCUSSION: The schedule for the project is as follows:

Plan Approval July 22, 2021
Bid Opening August 25, 2021
Contract Award September 9, 2021
Construction start November 2021

A reduced set of plans and the construction estimate are attached.  A full set of plans and the 
specifications are available for review in the Public Works Department.

FISCAL IMPACT: All phases of the Wharf Resiliency and Public Access Improvement Project 
including this Phase 1 work are funded by the following sources: 

Measure F funds $2.2 million
State Grant funds $1.9 million
American Rescue Plan funds $1.8 million

The Phase 1 work going to bid now will expend an estimated $482,500 for construction, permit 
compliance, monitoring and construction management. This work will be funded by the State 
Grants identified, as this source has the earliest expenditure deadline.

8.D

Packet Pg. 105



Wharf Project - Phase 1 to bid 
July 22, 2021

The city was recently notified the City’s $1.4 million federal funding request was not successful.  
Staff will now begin preparing alternate funding scenarios and additional phasing options for 
completion of the project, with a goal to return to the Council for direction in September or 
October.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 plans
2. Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 estimate

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.D

Packet Pg. 106



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

p
la

n
s 

 (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 P
h

as
e 

1 
to

 b
id

)



Capitola Wharf Resiliency and Public Access Improvements-Phase 1

Engineers Estimate 14‐Jul‐21

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

1 Mobilization and Demobilization to Site 1 LS 60,000$      60,000$      

2 Beam Construction Beneath Bldg 3 EA 17,500$      52,500$      

3 Remove Existing Steel Batter Pile Upper P 6 EA 11,000$      66,000$      

4 Cut Steel Pile and Construct Pile Jacket 6 EA 45,000$      270,000$    

5 Permit Compliance and Monitoring 1 EA 14,000$      14,000$      

6 All Contract Items Not Included in Items 1- 1 LS 20,000$      20,000$      

TOTAL 482,500$    

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

h
as

e 
1 

es
ti

m
at

e 
 (

W
h

ar
f 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 P

h
as

e 
1 

to
 b

id
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Library Lease Ordinance First Reading 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Determine the bid received from Santa Cruz County to lease the property at 2005 Wharf 

Road, and operate and maintain the Capitola Library with a rent payment of one dollar 
per year offers the greatest economic return to the City; and 

2. Approve the first reading and waive reading of the text of the proposed uncodified 
Ordinance allowing the City to enter a lease with a term in excess of 55 years and 
authorizing a 99-year lease with Santa Cruz County for the Capitola Library.

BACKGROUND: In 2004, the City entered an agreement with the County of Santa Cruz 
requiring the City to build a library and lease it to the County for a term of 99 years, or shorter 
period if required by law or agreed to by both parties. The agreement also requires the County 
to assume all facility maintenance responsibilities and maintain library staffing and service hours 
at the Capitola Library that are at least equivalent to staffing levels and service hours at the 
Aptos Branch Library for the term of the lease.

California Government Code Section 37380 authorizes cities to lease property for a period 
exceeding 55 years but not exceeding 99 years, if such a lease is authorized by an ordinance 
and the lease is awarded to the bidder who offers the greatest economic return to the City after 
competitive bidding.

With the recent completion of the Capitola Branch library, City staff has met with County 
representatives to develop a draft facility lease.

DISCUSSION: To comply with Government Code 37380, on July 2 staff issued a notice inviting 
bids for the operation of the Capitola Library, published that notice in the newspaper, and 
posted the notice on the City’s website.  One bid, from Santa Cruz County, was received with an 
offer to lease the building for one dollar annually, maintain the building, and operate a public 
library with staffing and service hours not less than comparable levels at the Aptos County 
Branch Library, for 99 years. Because the lease is in excess of 55 years, Government Code 
37380 requires the City Council to make a determination that the bid received by the County 
offers the greatest economic return to the City. Staff has determined it benefits the City and its 
residents for the County or its sublessee to operate the library for 99 years.

A copy of the current draft lease is attached. A final version of the lease will be included for 

8.E

Packet Pg. 115



Library Lease 
July 22, 2021

approval with the second reading of this ordinance. The lease includes all the relevant terms for 
the County to maintain and ensure staffing of the facility. Staff anticipates the County will 
sublease the building to the Santa Cruz Public Libraries Joint Powers Authority, which will 
operate the library.  

The lease allows the City to step in and maintain the property in an emergency or after 60 days’ 
notice that the building is not being properly maintained. The County would be required to 
reimburse the City for such maintenance or emergency repairs.

The lease also allows the City to use the property to secure future City debt, at the City’s sole 
discretion.

The lease does not cover the Library Tot Lot, which will continue to be maintained by the City.

FISCAL IMPACT: Approval of the ordinance and lease meets the terms of the 2004 contract 
with the County, ensuring the new library will be maintained and staffed for 99 years at no cost 
to the City.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. County Bid Final (PDF)
2. DRAFT Capitola Library Lease (PDF)
3. RDA County Library Settlement 2004 (PDF)

Report Prepared By:  Jamie Goldstein
City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.E

Packet Pg. 116



Library Lease 
July 22, 2021

CITY OF CAPITOLA ORDINANCE NO. _____
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 

37380 FOR LEASING PROPERTY FOR A TERM IN EXCESS OF 55 YEARS AND 
AUTHORIZING A 99-YEAR LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2005 WHARF ROAD, TO BE USED AS THE 
CAPITOLA LIBRARY

WHEREAS, on or around ______, 2004, the City of Capitola (“City”), the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Capitola (“Agency”), and  the County of Santa Cruz (“County”) entered into 
the First Implementation Agreement (“Agreement”) to Redevelopment Pass-Through Agreement 
and Library Agreement.  Section 4 of the Agreement required the Agency to design and 
commence construction of a minimum 7,000 square foot library building and related on-site 
improvements (“Library”) on an acceptable site, subject to public hearing and environmental 
review requirements.  Section 4.C of the Agreement states that, if the library was constructed, 
the City or Agency, as applicable, agrees to lease the site to the County or its designee, and the 
County agrees to lease the site from the City or Agency, pursuant to a ground lease, for a term 
of ninety-nine (99) years, or such shorter period to which the parties may agree or the maximum 
lease period allowed by law, if less than 99 years. That same Section of the Agreement further 
states the lease shall obligate the County to provide staffing levels and service hours for the 
Library that are not less than the comparable staff levels and service hours provided at the 
Aptos County Branch Library.
WHEREAS, the City has since constructed the Library on that certain piece of real property 
located at 2005 Wharf Road (“Property”).  It would benefit the City and its residents for the 
County to lease and operate the Library for a period of 99 years, as it would provide certainty 
and continuity to the City and its residents.
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 37380 authorizes California cities to lease 
property owned or held or controlled by it, for a period exceeding 55 years but not exceeding 99 
years, if all of the following conditions are met:
(1) The lease is subject to periodic review by the City and shall take into consideration the 
then current market conditions.  The local legislative body may, prior to final execution of the 
lease, establish the lease provisions which will periodically be reviewed, and determine when 
those provisions are to be reviewed.
(2) The lease is authorized by an ordinance adopted by the legislative body;
(3) Prior to adopting the ordinance, the governing body holds a public hearing noticed 
pursuant to Government Code Section 6066; and
(4) The lease is awarded to the bidder which, in the determination of the legislative body, 
offers the greatest economic return to the City, after competitive bidding.
WHEREAS, Articles 3 and 4 of the Lease shall be subject to review by the City on the tenth 
year following adoption of this Ordinance and every ten years thereafter.
WHEREAS, adoption of this Ordinance has followed a public hearing duly noticed pursuant to 
Government Code Section 6066. 
WHEREAS, prior to consideration by the City Council of the City of Capitola, the City conducted 
a competitive bidding process for the lease.  The County was the sole respondent and, in the 
determination of the City Council, offers the greatest economic return to the City.
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt this Ordinance for the purpose of authorizing the 
City to enter into a lease with the County for the Property for 99 years, and in satisfaction of the 
requirements of Government Code Section 37380.
NOW THEREFORE THE CITY OF CAPITOLA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

8.E

Packet Pg. 117



Library Lease 
July 22, 2021

SECTION 1: Adoption of Procedures.
The City Council adopts the procedures set forth in this Ordinance in satisfaction of the 
requirements of California Government Code Section 37380(b), such that the City may enter 
into a lease with the County, for a term not to exceed 99 years, for the lease of that certain 
piece of real property located at 2005 Wharf Road, to be used by and operated by the County 
and/ or a sublessee of the County as a public library, for the benefit of the Capitola and greater 
community (“Lease”).
SECTION 2: Periodic Review.
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 37380(b), and as further explained in this Ordinance, 
the Lease shall be subject to period review by the City and shall take into consideration the 
then-current market conditions.  The periodic reviews shall occur every ten (10) years after 
adoption of this Ordinance, unless otherwise specified in the Lease.
SECTION 3: Severability.
The City Council hereby declares every section, paragraph, sentence, clause and phrase of this 
Ordinance to be severable. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
ordinance is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity, or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the remaining sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases.
SECTION 4: Repeal of Inconsistent Provisions.
Any inconsistent provisions of the Capitola Municipal Code are repealed, to the extent of the 
inconsistencies.
SECTION 5: Effective Date.
This Ordinance of the City of Capitola shall take effect and be in force 30 days after the date of 
its passage.  
SECTION 6: Publication.
Within fifteen (15) days of its passage, this Ordinance shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the City of Capitola, along with the 
names of the members of the City Council voting for and against its passage.
This Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Capitola City Council on the 22nd 
day of July 2021, and was adopted at a regular meeting of the Capitola City Council on the 26th 
day of August 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers: ( )

NOES: Councilmembers: ( )

ABSENT: Councilmembers: ( )

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: ( )

SO ORDERED ATTEST

________________________________ _________________________________
Yvette Brooks, Mayor Chloe Woodmansee, City Clerk

Dated: ___________________________

8.E

Packet Pg. 118



 

 

County of Santa Cruz 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 520, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073 

831) 454-2100  • FAX: (831) 454-3420  • TDD/TTY: CALL 711 

CARLOS J. PALACIOS, COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 

SERVING THE COMMUNITY – WORKING FOR THE FUTURE 
 

 
 
 

July 15, 2021 
 
 
Steve Jesberg 
Department of Public Works  
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola, CA 95010 
 
RE: BID FOR LIBRARY OPERATIONS 
 
Dear Mr. Jesberg: 
 

The County of Santa Cruz (County) hereby submits a bid of $1.00 per year in lease 
payments to the City of Capitola (City) to operate a public library on certain real property 
commonly known as 2005 Wharf Road Capitola, CA 95010 on assessor’s parcel number 034-
541-34, referred to herein as “Premises”.  The Premises are currently improved with an 11,700 
square foot building, a parking lot and landscaped areas. Assessor’s parcel number 034-541-34 
also contains a children’s playground, known as the “Library Tot Lot,” which is specifically 
excluded from the Premises and is not included in this bid. 
  
 The County agrees to use the Premises solely for public library services. The County will 
ensure staffing levels and service hours for the Library that are not less than the comparable 
staff levels and service hours provided at the Aptos Branch Library, as said staffing levels at the 
Aptos Branch Library may change from time to time. The County will further assume 
responsibility for maintenance, repairs, and operation of the Library and the Premises, as 
committed in the First Implementation Agreement to Redevelopment Pass-Through Agreement 
and Library Agreement. 

 
The County currently owns or leases five other libraries in Santa Cruz County that are 

operated by the Santa Cruz Library Joint Powers Authority (LJPA), which was established in 
1996 and has operated the Capitola Branch Library since 1999. The LJPA will continue to serve 
as the designated library operator for all branches owned or leased by the County. 

 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
id

 F
in

al
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



  

 

SERVING THE COMMUNITY – WORKING FOR THE FUTURE 
 

BID FOR LIBRARY OPERATIONS 
July 15, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

For the past 25 years, the County has provided funding from the County Library Fund, 
which collects property taxes from the unincorporated areas of the County and the cities of 
Capitola and Scotts Valley, for the provision of library services by the LJPA. The County Library 
Fund currently generates $7.5 million in revenues and contributes $5.3 million towards library 
operations countywide, with excess funds available for use on library improvements, major 
maintenance, or services at County Library Fund branches including the Capitola Branch Library. 

 
With this experience, the County is highly qualified to operate a library in this region. If 

you have any questions or require additional information, I can be reached at (831) 454-2100. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Nicole Coburn 
Assistant County Administrative Officer 

8.E.1

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
id

 F
in

al
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



2005 WHARF ROAD #8020 

 

   

  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 
 

 

CAPITOLA LIBRARY – 2005 WHARF ROAD 

APN 034-541-34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                       

  

 

 

 

 

 

                               

 

 

 

LESSOR: CITY OF CAPITOLA  

 

 

 

LESSEE: COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, a political subdivision of the State of California 

        
 

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 1 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

ARTICLE NO. PAGE NO. 
 

SUBLEASE AGREEMENT….…………………………………………………………………………...…………1 

 

ARTICLE 1 PREMISES……………………………………………………………………………………...…3  

     1.1         PREMISES…………………………………………………………………………………………………. 3 

 

ARTICLE 2 TERM………………………………………………………………………………………………3 

     2.1        TERM………………………………………………………………………………………………………3 

2.2 OPTIONS…………………………………………………………………………………………………...3 

2.3        HOLD OVER………………………………………………………………………………………………..3 

2.4            EXTENSION    ………………………………………………………………………………………………3 

2.5 TERMINATION……………………………………………………………………………………………...3 

 

ARTICLE 3 RENT……………………………………………………………………………………………….4  

3.1 BASE ANNUAL RENT ................................................................................................................................... 4 

3.2 DELIVERY OF RENT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................... 4 

3.3 FAILURE TO PAY BASE RENT OR ADDITIONAL RENT; LATE CHARGE .......................................................... 4 

3.4 ADDITIONAL CHARGES…………………………………………………………………………………….4 

3.5            CAPITAL TRUST……………………………………………………………………………………………4  

 

ARTICLE 4 POSSESSION AND USE ................................................................................................................ 4 

      4.1         PERMITTED USES .................................................................................................................................. 4 

4.2 DUTIES AND PROHIBITED CONDUCT ............................................................................................................ 5 

4.3 COMPLIANCE WITH STORMWATER LAWS ................................................................................................... 5 

 

ARTICLE 5 SUBORDINATION CLAUSE……………………………………………………………………5  

5.1 SUBORDINATION ........................................................................................................................................  5 

  

ARTICLE 6 UTILITIES…………..……………………………………………...…………..…………………6  

    6.1      UTILITY SERVICES…………………………………………………………………………………………6 

     6.2             ENERGY CONSERVATION BY LESSEE………………………………………………………………………6 

     6.3       ENERGY CONSERVATION BY CITY………………………………………………………………………....6 

 

ARTICLE 7 MECHANICS’ LIENS…...……………………………………………………………………… 6 

    7.1           MECHANICS' LIENS  ………………………………………………………………………………………6 

 

ARTICLE 8 SECURITY………………………………………………………………………………………...7 

     8.1          SECURITY…… ……………………………………………………………………………………………7 

 

ARTICLE 9 TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND FEES…………………………………………………………...7 

9.1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT OF TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS ................................................................... 7 

9.2 DEFINITION OF TAXES ................................................................................................................................. 7 

9.3 CREATION OF POSSESSORY INTEREST ......................................................................................................... 7 

 

ARTICLE 10 REPAIRS; MAINTENANCE…………………………………………………………………….7 

10.1 ACCEPTANCE OF PREMISES ......................................................................................................................... 7 

10.2 LESSEE'S REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS .................................................................................. 8 

10.3 MINOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS .......................................................................................................... 8 

10.4 MAJOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS .......................................................................................................... 8 

10.5 LESSEE'S FAILURE TO MAINTAIN ................................................................................................................ 8 

10.6 RIGHT TO ENTER ......................................................................................................................................... 9 

10.7 CITY NOT OBLIGATED TO REPAIR OR MAINTAIN; LESSEE'S WAIVER OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 

1942 ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..9 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 2 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

 

ARTICLE 11 INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE…………………………………………………………...…...9 

11.1 LESSEE’S INDEMNITY .................................................................................................................................. 9 

11.2 CITY’S INDEMNITY ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

11.3 LESSEE'S INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS ............................................................................................................ 9  

  

ARTICLE 12 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS….................................................................................................. .10 

12.1 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS LAWS-DEFINITION ............................................................................................ 10 

12.2 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - DEFINITION ..................................................................................................... 10 

12.3 LESSEE'S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ....................................................................................... 10 

12.4 INDEMNIFICATION BY LESSEE ................................................................................................................... 12 

12.5 REMEDIES CUMULATIVE; SURVIVAL ......................................................................................................... 12 

12.6 INSPECTION ............................................................................................................................................... 12 

 

ARTICLE 13 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING…………………………………………………………..13 

 

ARTICLE 14  CITY'S RIGHT OF ACCESS…………………………………………………………………...13 

  

ARTICLE 15 QUIET ENJOYMENT…………………………………………………………………………..13 

 

ARTICLE 16 NOTICES…………………………………………………………………………………………14 

16.1 NOTICES .................................................................................................................................................... 14 

16.2 DEFAULT NOTICES .................................................................................................................................... 14 

 

ARTICLE 17 WAIVER OF RELOCATION ASSISTANCE BENEFITS. .................................................... .14 

17.1 RELOCATION ASSISTANCE BENEFITS ........................................................................................................ 14 

17.2 LESSEE'S WAIVER AND RELEASE OF RELOCATION BENEFITS….. ............................................................ ..15 

 

ARTICLE 18  GENERAL PROVISIONS……………………………………………………………………...15 

18.1 AUTHORITY ............................................................................................................................................... 15 

18.2 BROKERS ................................................................................................................................................... 15 

18.3 CAPTIONS .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

18.4 CITY APPROVAL ........................................................................................................................................ 15 

18.5 CUMULATIVE REMEDIES ........................................................................................................................... 15 

18.6 ENTIRE AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................................. 16 

18.7 ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE ............................................................................................................................ 16 

18.8 EXHIBITS ................................................................................................................................................... 16 

18.9 FORCE MAJEURE ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

18.10 GOVERNING LAW ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

18.11 INTERPRETATION ....................................................................................................................................... 16 

18.12 JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY ................................................................................................................. 16 

18.13 LEASE ADMINISTRATION ........................................................................................................................... 16 

18.14 LESSEE'S LEASE ADMINISTRATION ............................................................................................................ 17 

18.15 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES ............................................................................................................................. 17 

18.16 MODIFICATION .......................................................................................................................................... 17 

18.17 PARTIAL INVALIDITY ................................................................................................................................ 17 

18.18 PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

18.19 SUCCESSORS & ASSIGNS ........................................................................................................................... 17 

18.20 TIME OF ESSENCE ...................................................................................................................................... 17 

18.21 WAIVER .................................................................................................................................................... 17 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE   ………………………………………………………………………………………………19 

 

EXHIBIT A  -  MAP OF THE PREMISES……………………………………………………………………….A1 

 

EXHIBIT B  -  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS………………………………………………………………..B1 

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 3 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

This Lease is entered into this ____ day of _____________, 20__, between the City of 

Capitola (“City” or “Lessor”) and the County of Santa Cruz (“County” or “Lessee”). The City 

and County are sometimes referred to herein individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties.”  

 

 This Lease is entered into upon the following facts, understandings and intentions of the 

City and Lessee. 

 

 

ARTICLE 1 

PREMISES 

 

1.1 Premises. City owns that certain real property commonly known as 2005 Wharf 

Road Capitola, CA 95010 on assessor’s parcel number 034-541-34, more particularly described 

in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof and referred to herein as “Premises”.  The 

Premises are currently improved with an 11,700 square foot building, a parking lot and 

landscaped areas. Assessor’s parcel number 034-541-34 also contains a children’s playground, 

known as the “Library Tot Lot”, which is specifically excluded from the Premises and is not 

included in this Lease.   

 

ARTICLE 2 

TERM 

 

2.1  Term. The term of this Lease shall commence upon execution by all Parties 

hereto, and shall continue for 99 years (“Term”). 

 

2.2 Compliance with California Government Code Section 37380.  On 

August 26, 2021, the City passed Ordinance No. ----, which established procedures pursuant to 

Cal. Government Code Section 37380 to authorize the City to enter into a lease of up to 99 years 

for the property that is the subject of this Lease. 

 

2.25         Hold Over. If Lessee remains in possession of the Premises beyond the term of 

this Lease or any extension or renewal hereof without executing a new written Lease with City, 

such holding over shall not constitute a renewal or extension of this Lease, but Lessee shall be a 

tenant on a month to month basis terminable with ninety (90) days’ notice by either party.   

 

2.3 Extension. While Government Code Section 37380 does not permit an 

extension of this Lease beyond its 99 year Term, the parties agree to meet and confer regarding a 

subsequent lease of the Premises prior to or upon expiration of this Lease.  

 

2.5 Termination. This lease may be terminated at any time, for any reason, by 

mutual written agreement of the Parties hereto. The Parties agree to negotiate in good faith 

regarding the terms and conditions surrounding a request for termination and agreement to 

terminate will not be unreasonably withheld. The Parties further agree that if City detaches from 

the County Library Fund, a special revenue fund that includes property taxes assessed in the 

City, during the Term of this Lease, this Lease and any subleases will automatically terminate 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 4 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

and City and Lessee mutually agree that all obligations of Lessee set forth in the First 

Implementation Agreement to Redevelopment Pass-Through Agreement and Library Agreement 

shall be deemed fulfilled in their entirety, including but not limited to, Lessee’s obligations to 

provide staffing levels and service hours for the Library that are not less than the comparable 

staffing levels and service hours provided at the Aptos County Branch Library; Lessee’s 

responsibility for maintenance, repairs, and operation of the Library and the Premises; and 

Lessee’s obligation to provide for customary indemnifications for the benefit of the City for 99 

years from the date of execution of this Lease. 

 

2.6 The Parties agree that this Lease, including the provisions of this Article 2, is 

consistent with the Parties’ obligations as defined in the First Implementation Agreement to 

Redevelopment Pass-Through Agreement and Library Agreement, executed on August 17, 2004. 

 

 

ARTICLE 3 

CONSIDERATION 

 

3.1 Base Annual Rent. Lessee shall pay as rent for the use and occupancy of the 

Premises an annual fee of $1.00, due on the anniversary date of the execution of Lease. Rent 

shall remain the same for the entire Term of this Lease unless adjusted by written amendment 

executed by all parties hereto. 

 

 3.1.1 Delivery of Rent Payments.  All rent due under this Lease shall be made 

payable to the City of Capitola and shall be considered paid when delivered to: 

    

   CITY OF CAPITOLA  

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, CA 95010 

 

City may, at any time, by written notice to Lessee, designate a different 

address to which Lessee shall deliver the rent payments.  City may, but is not 

obligated to, send rent invoices to Lessee. 

 

 3.1.2 Failure to Pay Base Rent or Additional Rent; Late Charge. If Lessee fails 

to pay rent due hereunder at the time it is due and payable, or within thirty (30 days thereafter, 

such unpaid amounts shall bear interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per year from the date 

due to the date of payment, computed on the basis of monthly compounding with actual days 

elapsed compared to a 365-day year. However, City may in its sole discretion waive any 

delinquency payment or late charge upon written application of Lessee.  

 

3.2 Library Operations.  In addition to the payments of Base Annual Rent, Lessee 

shall assume responsibility for maintenance, repairs, and operation of the Library and the 

premises, as more fully described in this Lease. 

 

 

ARTICLE 4 

POSSESSION AND USE 

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 5 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

            4.1 Permitted Uses.  Lessee shall use the Premises solely for public library services. 

No one other than Lessee, its agents, volunteers and employees, or any Lessee approved by City 

as provided in Article 13, "Assignment and Subletting," is permitted to use the Premises for the 

purposes described herein, and Lessee shall be fully responsible for the activities of its agents, 

volunteers and employees and Lessees, if any, on the Premises. 

 

            4.2 Hours of Operation. Lessee will provide staffing levels and service hours for the 

Library that are not less than the comparable staff levels and service hours provided at the Aptos 

County Branch Library, as said staffing levels at the Aptos County Branch Library may change 

from time to time. 

 

4.3 Duties and Prohibited Conduct.  Where Lessee is reasonably in doubt as to the 

propriety of any particular use, Lessee may request the written determination of City that such 

use is or is not permitted, and Lessee will not be in breach or default under this Lease if Lessee 

abides by such determination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, Lessee shall not use nor 

permit the use of the Premises in any manner that will tend to create waste or a nuisance. Lessee 

shall, at Lessee's expense, comply promptly with all applicable statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, orders, covenants and restrictions of record, and requirements in effect during the 

term, regulating the use by Lessee of the Premises.  Lessee shall not use, or permit any person or 

persons to use, the Premises for the sale or display of any goods and/or services, which, in the 

sole discretion of City, are inconsistent with the permitted uses of the Premises pursuant to this 

Lease.  Lessee shall keep the Premises, and every part thereof, in a decent, safe and sanitary 

condition, free from any objectionable noises or odors, except as may be typically present for the 

permitted uses specified above.  

 

4.4 Compliance with Stormwater Laws.  Lessee's use of the Premises is subject to 

federal, state and local laws regarding the discharge into the stormwater conveyance system of 

pollutants. Compliance with these laws may require Lessee to develop, install, implement and 

maintain pollution prevention measures, source control measures and Best Management 

Practices ("BMPs").  Lessee further agrees to develop, install, and/ or implement any BMPs or 

similar pollution control devices required by federal, state and/or local law and any 

implementing regulations.  Any costs associated with such implementation will be handled 

consistent with other maintenance and repair costs as outlined in Article 10. 

 

Lessee understands and acknowledges that the storm water and non-storm water 

requirements applicable to Lessee's use of the Premises may be changed from time to time by 

federal, state and/or local authorities, and that additional requirements may become applicable 

based on changes in Lessee's activities or development or redevelopment by Lessee or City. To 

the extent there is a conflict between any federal, state, or local law, Lessee shall comply with 

the more restrictive provision.  If City receives any fine or fines from any regulatory agency as a 

result of Lessee's failure to comply with applicable storm water laws as set forth in this Article, 

Lessee shall reimburse City for the entire fine amount.  

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

SUBORDINATION CLAUSE 

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 6 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

5.1  Subordination. The Parties acknowledge that City may enter into one or more 

lease/leaseback financing arrangements consisting generally of a site lease, lease agreement, 

assignment agreement and related agreements (collectively, the “Financing Leases”) with a 

financing authority or another public agency in order to assist the City in connection with 

financing and refinancing certain capital improvements of the City.  

 

Under the Financing Leases, the City may lease and lease back certain real property and 

improvements that may include the Premises subject to one or more library leases. 

 

In order to facilitate the execution and delivery of any Financing Leases, Lessee and City 

desire that this Lease and Lessee's right, title and interest in the Premises be subordinate to the 

rights, titles, and interests of the parties to the Financing Leases.  

 

Therefore,  it is agreed that this Lease and all of Lessee's right, title, and interest in and to 

the Premises thereunder shall be, and the same are expressly made subject to, subordinate and 

inferior to any Financing Leases, and to all extensions, renewals, modifications, consolidations 

and replacements of the Financing Leases. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 

UTILITIES 

 

6.1 Utility Services. Lessee shall make all arrangements for and pay for all utilities 

and municipal services supplied to the Premises or used by Lessee, including but not limited to 

water, gas, electricity, garbage collection, sewage charges or septic service, and telephone, and 

for all connection charges.  City shall have no responsibility either to provide or pay for such 

services. Notwithstanding the above, the City may assume responsibility for garbage collection 

services at the Premises, as currently provided in the City’s franchise agreement with its waste 

hauling franchisee.  The City may continue to provide garbage collection services in the future at 

the City’s sole discretion. 

 

6.2 Energy Conservation by Lessee. Lessee shall endeavor to promote energy 

conservation measures in the operation of all activities on the Premises.  Lessee shall cooperate 

with the City in all forms of energy conservation including energy-efficient lighting, heating and 

air-conditioning systems, and fixtures and equipment.  Lessee shall comply with all federal, State 

and City laws, by-laws, regulations, etc., relating to the conservation of energy. Lessee shall 

comply with all reasonable requests and demands of the City pertaining to the installation and 

maintenance of energy conservation systems, fixtures, and equipment installed by the City. 

 

6.3 Energy Conservation by City. City is required to comply with all laws and 

regulations requiring the installation of energy-efficient systems, fixtures, and equipment at City 

buildings and facilities. In accordance with all laws and regulations and this Lease, Lessee shall 

maintain or repair, or cause to maintain or repair, the building, and related systems in accordance 

with current energy conservation standards. 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 

MECHANICS' LIENS 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 7 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

 

7.1  Mechanics Liens. Lessee shall pay, or cause to be paid, all costs for work done by 

it, or caused to be done by it, on the Premises, and for all materials furnished for or in connection 

with any such work.  If any lien is filed against the Premises, Lessee shall cause the lien to be 

discharged within ten (10) days after it is filed.  Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold City 

harmless from any and all liability, loss, damage, costs, attorneys' fees and all other expenses on 

account of claims of lien of laborers or others for work performed or materials or supplies 

furnished for Lessee or persons acting on behalf of Lessee. 

 

ARTICLE 8 

SECURITY  

 

8.1  Security. Lessee shall be responsible for and shall provide for the security of the 

Premises, and City shall have no responsibility therefor. 

 

 

ARTICLE 9 

TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND FEES 

 

9.1 Responsibility for Payment of Taxes and Assessments.  City shall not be 

obligated to pay any taxes or assessments accruing against Lessee on the Premises or any interest 

of Lessee therein before, during or after the Term, or any extension thereof; all such payments 

shall be the sole responsibility of Lessee.  In addition, Lessee shall be solely responsible for 

payment of any taxes or assessments levied upon any improvements, fixtures or personal 

property located on the Premises, to the extent that such taxes or assessments result from the 

business or other activities of Lessee upon, or in connection with, the Premises.   

 

9.2 Definition of Taxes.  As used herein, the term "taxes" means all taxes, 

governmental bonds, special assessments, Mello-Roos assessments, charges, rent income or 

transfer taxes, license and transaction fees, including, but not limited to, (i) any state, local, 

federal, personal or corporate income tax, or any real or personal property tax, (ii) any estate 

inheritance taxes, (iii) any franchise, succession or transfer taxes, (iv) interest on taxes or 

penalties resulting from Lessee's failure to pay taxes, (v) any increases in taxes attributable to the 

sale of Lessee's Leasehold interest in the Premises, or (vi) any taxes which are essentially 

payments to a governmental agency for the right to make improvements to the Premises. 

 

9.3 Creation of Possessory Interest.  Pursuant to the provisions of Revenue and 

Taxation Code Section 107.6, Lessee is hereby advised that the terms of this Lease may result in 

the creation of a possessory interest.  If such a possessory interest is vested in Lessee, Lessee 

may be subjected to the payment of real property taxes levied on such interest.  Lessee shall be 

solely responsible for the payment of any such real property taxes.  Lessee shall pay all such 

taxes when due, and shall not allow any such taxes, assessments or fees to become a lien against 

the Premises or any improvement thereon; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be 

deemed to prevent or prohibit Lessee from contesting the validity of any such tax, assessment or 

fee in a manner authorized by law. 

 

 

ARTICLE 10 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 8 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

REPAIRS; MAINTENANCE 

 

10.1 Acceptance of Premises.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has made a 

thorough inspection of the Premises prior to the commencement date of this Lease, and that it 

accepts the Premises as of the commencement date in their condition at that time.  Lessee further 

acknowledges that City has made no oral or written representations or warranties to Lessee 

regarding the condition of the Premises, and that Lessee is relying solely on its inspection of the 

Premises with respect thereto. Lessee agrees not to make changes to the built environment 

without obtaining the City’s prior written approval. The Parties agree and acknowledge that 

Lessee has procured and is currently undergoing a full facility assessment of the Premises to 

determine the appropriate amount of funding needed to maintain the Premises. 
 

10.2 Lessee's Repair and Maintenance Obligations. Lessee shall at all times during 

the Term, repair and maintain the Premises in good and tenantable condition, and coordinate all 

Maintenance and Repairs. Upon surrender of the Premises, Lessee shall deliver the Premises to 

City in good order, condition and state of repair, but shall not be responsible for damages 

resulting from ordinary wear and tear. Lessee shall maintain all trash receptacles and trash areas 

in a clean, orderly and first-class condition. Any proposed remodel of the Library by Lessee, that 

involves reconstruction of structural building elements, relocation of interior walls, or removal of 

building finishes, must be approved in advance by the City. Approval by City shall not be 

unreasonably withheld.  

 

10.3 Lessee's Failure to Maintain.  If Lessee refuses or neglects to repair, replace, or 

maintain the Premises, or any part thereof, in a manner reasonably satisfactory to City, City may, 

upon giving Lessee sixty (60) days’ written notice of its election to do so, make such repairs or 

perform such maintenance itself or using vendors selected by City. In the event of an emergency, 

danger to life or safety, or threat to the integrity of the Premises, City may perform necessary 

repairs and maintenance without prior notice. Lessee shall reimburse the City for the cost of all 

such repairs within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the City. If City staff performs 

the repairs, Lessee shall reimburse the City for staff time at the City’s standard rate. 

 

10.4 Right to Enter.  Lessee shall permit City, or its authorized representatives, to 

enter the Premises at all times during usual business hours to inspect the same, and to perform 

any work therein that (a) may be necessary to comply with any laws, ordinances, rules or 

regulations of any public authority, (b) City may deem necessary to prevent waste or 

deterioration in connection with the Premises if Lessee does not make, or cause to be made, such 

repairs or perform, or cause to be performed, such work promptly after receipt of written demand 

from City, and (c) City may deem necessary in connection with the expansion, reduction, 

remodeling, protection or renovation of any City-constructed or owned facilities on or off of the 

Premises.  Nothing herein shall imply any duty on the part of City to do any such work which, 

under any provision of this Lease, Lessee may be required to do, nor shall City's performance of 

any repairs on behalf of Lessee constitute a waiver of Lessee's default in failing to do the same.  

If City exercises any of its rights under this Section, Lessee shall not be entitled to any 

compensation, damages or abatement of rent from City for any injury or inconvenience 

occasioned thereby. 

 

10.5 City Not Obligated to Repair or Maintain; Lessee's Waiver of California Civil 

Code Section 1942.  To the extent that any remedies specified in this Lease conflict or are 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 9 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

inconsistent with any provisions of California Civil Code section 1942, or any successor statute 

thereto ("CC §1942"), the provisions of this Lease shall control.  Lessee specifically waives any 

right it may have pursuant to CC §1942 to effect maintenance or repairs to the Premises and to 

abate the costs thereof from rent due to the City under this Lease. 

 

 

ARTICLE 11 

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

 

11.1 Lessee’s Indemnity.  City shall not be liable for, and Lessee shall defend and 

indemnify City, including its employees and agents, against any and all claims, demands, 

liability, judgments, awards, fines, mechanics' liens or other liens, labor disputes, losses, 

damages, expenses, charges or costs of any kind or character, including attorneys’ fees and court 

costs (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims"), related to this Lease and arising either 

directly or indirectly from any act, error, omission or negligence of Lessee or its contractors, 

licensees, agents, volunteers, servants or employees, including, without limitation, Claims caused 

by the concurrent negligent act, error or omission, whether active or passive, of City.  Lessee 

shall have no obligation, however, to defend or indemnify City from a Claim if it is determined 

by a court of competent jurisdiction that such Claim was caused by the sole negligence or willful 

misconduct of City. 

 

            11.2 City’s Indemnity.  City shall defend and indemnify Lessee and hold it harmless 

from and against any Claims related to this Lease that arise solely from any act, omission or 

negligence of City Parties.   

 

11.3 Lessee's Insurance Obligations.  Without limiting Lessee's indemnification 

obligations to City under this Lease, Lessee shall provide and maintain, during the Term and for 

such other period as may be required herein, at its sole expense, insurance in the amounts and 

form specified in Exhibit "B," attached hereto. 

 

Lessee maintains a policy of All-Risk Insurance covering the City's personal property in 

the Premises, including any fixtures or equipment in the Premises leased by Lessee. Lessee 

utilizes a program of self-funding with regard to any liability it may incur for personal injury or 

property damage arising out its use or occupancy of the Premises. 

 

 

ARTICLE 12 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 

12.1 Hazardous Materials Laws-Definition.  As used in this section, the term 

"Hazardous Materials' Laws" means any and all federal, state or local laws or ordinances, rules, 

decrees, orders, regulations or court decisions (including the so-called "common law"), including 

without limitation the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 

of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as 

amended (49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as 

amended (42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.), and the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, 

relating to hazardous substances, hazardous materials, hazardous waste, toxic substances, 

environmental conditions on, under or about the Premises, soil and ground water conditions or 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 10 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

other similar substances or conditions. 

 

12.2 Hazardous Materials - Definition.  As used in this section the term "Hazardous 

Materials" means any chemical, compound, material, substance or other matter that: 

 

a. Is a flammable, explosive, asbestos, radioactive nuclear medicine, vaccine, 

bacteria, virus, hazardous waste, toxic, overtly injurious or potentially injurious material, 

whether injurious or potentially injurious by itself or in combination with other materials; 

 

b. Is controlled, referred to, designated in or governed by any Hazardous 

Materials Laws; 

 

c. Gives rise to any reporting, notice or publication requirements under any 

Hazardous Materials Laws; or 

 

d. Is any other material or substance giving rise to any liability, responsibility 

or duty upon the City or Lessee with respect to any third person under any Hazardous Materials 

Law. 

 

12.3 Lessee's Representations and Warranties.  Lessee represents and warrants that, 

during the Term or any extension thereof, or for such longer period as may be specified herein, 

Lessee shall comply with the following provisions unless otherwise specifically approved in 

writing by City: 

a. Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be brought, 

kept or used in or about the Premises by Lessee, its agents, employees, assignees, contractors or 

invitees, except as required by Lessee's permitted use of the Premises, as described in Section 

5.1, "Permitted Uses." 

 

b. Any handling, transportation, storage, treatment or usage by Lessee of 

Hazardous Materials that is to occur on the Premises following the Commencement Date shall be 

in compliance with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws. 

 

c. Any leaks, spills, release, discharge, or emission of Hazardous Materials 

caused by Lessee, or disposal of Hazardous Materials owned by Lessee, which may occur on the 

Premises during the Term shall be promptly and thoroughly cleaned and removed from the 

Premises by Lessee at its sole expense, and any such discharge shall be promptly reported in 

writing to City, and to any other appropriate governmental regulatory authorities. 

 

d. No friable asbestos shall be constructed, placed on, deposited, stored, 

disposed of, or located by Lessee in the Premises.  

 

e. No underground improvements, including but not limited to treatment or 

storage tanks, or water, gas or oil wells shall be located by Lessee on the Premises without City's 

prior written consent. 

 

f. Lessee shall conduct and complete all investigations, studies, sampling, 

and testing procedures and all remedial, removal, and other actions necessary to clean up and 

remove all Hazardous Materials on, from, or affecting the Premises in accordance with all 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 11 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

applicable Hazardous Materials' Laws and to the satisfaction of City. 

 

g. Activities proposed by Lessee that involve disturbing asbestos materials 

on site shall only be conducted in accordance with all federal, state and local asbestos rules and 

regulations including, but not limited to, the California Occupational Safety and Health 

Administration (Cal/OSHA), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Air Pollution Control 

District (APCD), with prior written consent of the City, as follows: 

 

Prior to conducting asbestos related activities, Lessee shall notify City of the 

proposed work at least one month in advance.  The notification shall include the location of 

work, type of asbestos containing material (ACM) to be removed and a work plan indicating the 

work practices and methods of control to be used during the abatement activity to control 

asbestos fiber release.  The City Occupational Health Program shall review the work plan and 

may modify the plans as necessary. 

 

Any asbestos related activities shall be performed by a contractor that is 

registered with Cal/OSHA and certified by the California Contractors State Licensing Board to 

perform asbestos work.  Any asbestos related activities shall be overseen by a California 

Certified Asbestos Consultant (CAC), or a Certified Site Surveillance Technician under the 

direction of a CAC. 

 

Replacement products used in tenant improvements or other construction 

activities shall not contain asbestos.  Any replacement products used by Lessee shall be verified 

as non-asbestos products by using Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and/or having the 

architect or project engineer verify that ACMs were not used. 

 

h. Lessee shall promptly supply City with copies of all notices, reports, 

correspondence, and submissions made by Lessee to the United States Environmental Protection 

Agency, the United Occupational Safety and Health Administration, and any other local, state or 

federal authority which requires submission of any information concerning environmental 

matters or hazardous wastes or substances pursuant to applicable Hazardous Materials' Laws. 

 

i. Lessee shall promptly notify City of any liens threatened or attached 

against the Premises pursuant to any Hazardous Materials' Law.  If such a lien is filed against the 

Premises, then within twenty (20) days following such filing or before any governmental 

authority commences proceedings to sell the Premises pursuant to the lien, whichever occurs 

first, Lessee shall either:  (a) pay the claim and remove the lien from the Premises; or (b) furnish 

either (1) a bond or cash deposit reasonably satisfactory to City in an amount not less than the 

claim from which the lien arises, or (2) other security satisfactory to City in an amount not less 

than that which is sufficient to discharge the claim from which the lien arises.  At the end of this 

Lease, Lessee shall surrender the Premises to City free of any and all Hazardous Materials and in 

compliance with all Hazardous Materials' Laws affecting the Premises. 

 

12.4 Indemnification by Lessee.  Lessee (and, if applicable, each of its general 

partners) and its successors, assigns, and guarantors, if any, jointly and severally agree to protect, 

indemnify, defend (with counsel selected by City), reimburse and hold City and its officers, 

employees and agents harmless from any claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs or 

expenses (known or unknown, contingent or otherwise), liabilities (including sums paid in 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 12 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

settlement of claims), personal injury (including wrongful death), property damage (real or 

personal) or loss, including attorneys' fees, consultants' fees, and experts' fees (consultants and 

experts to be selected by City) which arise during or after the Term from or in connection with 

the presence or suspected presence of Hazardous Materials, including the soil, ground water or 

soil vapor on or under the Premises.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 

indemnification provided by this section shall specifically cover costs incurred in connection 

with investigation of site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or restoration work 

required by any Hazardous Materials Laws because of the presence of Hazardous Materials in 

the soil, ground water or soil vapor on the Premises, and the release or discharge of Hazardous 

Materials by Lessee during the course of Lessee's alteration or improvement of the Premises. 

 

12.5 Remedies Cumulative; Survival.  The provisions of this Article shall be in 

addition to any and all common law obligations and liabilities Lessee may have to City, and any 

remedies and the environmental indemnities provided for herein shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Lease and/or any transfer of all or any portion of the Premises, or of any 

interest in this Lease, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  

 

12.6 Inspection.  City and City's agents, servants, and employees including, without 

limitation, legal counsel and environmental consultants and engineers retained by City, may (but 

without the obligation or duty so to do), at any time and from time to time, on not less than five 

(5) business days' notice to Lessee (except in the event of an emergency in which case no notice 

shall be required), inspect the Premises to determine whether Lessee is complying with Lessee's 

obligations set forth in this Article, and to perform environmental inspections and samplings, 

during regular business hours (except in the event of an emergency) or during such other hours 

as City and Lessee may agree.  If Lessee is not in compliance, City shall have the right, in 

addition to City's other remedies available at law and in equity, to enter upon the Premises 

immediately and take such action as City in its sole judgment deems appropriate to remediate 

any actual or threatened contamination caused by Lessee's failure to comply.  City will use 

reasonable efforts to minimize interference with Lessee's use of Premises but shall not be liable 

for any interference caused by City's entry and remediation efforts.  Upon completion of any 

sampling or testing City will (at Lessee's expense if City's actions are a result of Lessee's default 

under this section) restore the affected area of the Premises from any damage caused by City's 

sampling and testing. 

 

 

ARTICLE 13 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

 

Lessee shall not voluntarily or involuntarily assign, Lease, mortgage, encumber, or 

otherwise transfer (collectively, a "Transfer") all or any portion of the Premises or its interest in 

this Lease without City's prior written consent.  City may reasonably withhold its consent to any 

Transfer.  Any attempted Transfer without City's consent shall be void and shall constitute a 

material breach of this Lease.  As used herein, the term "Transfer" shall include an arrangement 

(including without limitation management agreements, concessions, and licenses) that allows the 

use and occupancy of all or part of the Premises by anyone other than Lessee. 

 

 

ARTICLE 14  

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 13 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

CITY'S RIGHT OF ACCESS 

 

City, its agents, employees, and contractors may enter the Premises at any time in 

response to an emergency, and at reasonable hours to (a) inspect the Premises, (b) exhibit the 

Premises to prospective purchasers or Lessees, (c) determine whether Lessee is complying with 

its obligations in this Lease (including its obligations with respect to compliance with Hazardous 

Materials Laws), (d) supply cleaning service and any other service that this Lease requires City 

to provide, (e) post notices of non-responsibility or similar notices, (f) make repairs that this 

Lease requires or permits City to make, or make repairs to any adjoining space or utility services, 

or make repairs, alterations, or improvements to any other portion of the Premises; provided, 

however, that all work will be done as promptly as reasonably possible and so as to cause as little 

interference to Lessee as reasonably possible, or (g) for any other reason permitted by this Lease. 

 

Lessee waives any claim of injury or inconvenience to Lessee's business, interference 

with Lessee's business, loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises, or any other loss 

occasioned by such entry. If necessary, Lessee shall provide City with keys to unlock all of the 

doors in the Premises (excluding Lessee's vaults, safes, and similar areas designated in writing 

by Lessee in advance). City will have the right to use any means that City may deem proper to 

open doors in the Premises and to the Premises in an emergency. No entry to the Premises by 

City by any means will be a forcible or unlawful entry into the Premises or a detainer of the 

Premises or an eviction, actual or constructive, of Lessee from the Premises, or any part of the 

Premises, nor shall the entry entitle Lessee to damages or an abatement of rent or other charges 

that this Lease requires Lessee to pay. 

 

ARTICLE 15 

QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 

If Lessee is not in breach under the covenants made in this Lease, City covenants that 

Lessee shall have peaceful and quiet enjoyment of the Premises without hindrance on the part of 

City.  City will defend Lessee in the peaceful and quiet enjoyment of the Premises against claims 

of all persons claiming through or under the City. 

 

 

ARTICLE 16 

NOTICES 

 

16.1 Notices.  Whenever in this Lease it shall be required or permitted that notice or 

demand be given or served by either party to this Lease to or on the other, such notice or demand 

shall be in writing, mailed or delivered to the other party at the following addresses: 

 

 

To City: 

 

City of Capitola  

420 Capitola Avenue 

Capitola, CA 95010 

(831) 475-7300 

      

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 14 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

To Lessee:  

 

County of Santa Cruz- Real Property Section  

701 Ocean Street, Room 410 

Santa Cruz, California 95060 

(831) 454-2160 

 

 Mailed notices shall be sent by United States Postal Service, certified or registered mail, 

postage prepaid and shall be deemed to have been given, delivered and received three (3) 

business days after the date such notice or other communication is posted by the United States 

Postal Service.  All other such notices or other communications shall be deemed given, delivered 

and received upon actual receipt.  Either party may, by written notice delivered pursuant to this 

provision, at any time designate a different address to which notices shall be sent.   

 

16.2 Default Notices.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained within this 

Article, any notices City is required or authorized to deliver to Lessee in order to advise Lessee 

of alleged violations of Lessee's covenants under this Lease must be in writing but shall be 

deemed to have been duly given or served upon Lessee by City attempting to deliver at the 

Premises during normal business hours a copy of such notice to Lessee or its managing 

employee and by City mailing a copy of such notice to Lessee in the manner specified in the 

preceding Section. 

 

 

ARTICLE 18  

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

18.1 Authority.  Lessee represents and warrants that it has full power and authority to 

execute and fully perform its obligations under this Lease pursuant to its governing instruments, 

without the need for any further action, and that the person(s) executing this Lease on behalf of 

Lessee are the duly designated agents of Lessee and are authorized to do so. 

 

18.2 Brokers.  Lessee warrants that it has not been represented by any real estate 

broker or agent in connection with the negotiation and/or execution of this Lease.  In the event 

any broker makes claim for monies owed, Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold City harmless 

therefrom. 

 

18.3 Captions.  The captions, headings and index appearing in this Lease are inserted 

for convenience only and in no way define, limit, construe, or describe the scope or intent of the 

provisions of this Lease. 

 

18.4 City Approval.  Except where stated  

herein to the contrary, the phrases "City's approval," and "City's written approval" or such similar 

phrases shall mean approval of City Manager or City’s Manager’s representative. 

 

18.5 Cumulative Remedies.  In the event of a default under this Lease, each Party's 

remedies shall be limited to those remedies set forth in this Lease.  Any such remedies are 

cumulative and not exclusive of any other remedies under this Lease to which the non-defaulting 

Party may be entitled.   

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 15 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

 

18.6 Entire Agreement.  This Lease, together with all addenda, exhibits and riders 

attached hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject 

matter hereof, and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings and representations, 

oral or written, are superseded. 

 

18.7 Estoppel Certificate.  Lessee shall at any time during the term of this Lease, 

within five (5) business days of written notice from City, execute and deliver to City a statement 

in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect or, if modified, 

stating the nature of such modification.  Lessee's statement shall include other details requested 

by City, such as the date on which rent and other charges are paid, the current ownership and 

name of Lessee, Lessee's knowledge concerning any outstanding defaults with respect to City's 

obligations under this Lease and the nature of any such defaults.  Any such statement may be 

relied upon conclusively by any prospective purchaser or encumbrancer of the Premises.  

Lessee's failure to deliver such statements within such time shall be conclusively deemed to 

mean that this Lease is in full force and effect, except to the extent any modification has been 

represented by City, that there are no uncured defaults in the City's performance, and that not 

more than one month's rent has been paid in advance. 

 

18.8 Exhibits.  All exhibits referred to herein are attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference. 

 

18.9 Force Majeure.  In the event either party is prevented or delayed from 

performing any act or discharging any obligation hereunder, except for the payment of rent by 

Lessee, because of any and all causes beyond either party's reasonable control, including unusual 

delays in deliveries, abnormal adverse weather conditions, unavoidable casualties, strikes, labor 

disputes, inability to obtain labor, materials or equipment, acts of God, governmental restrictions, 

regulations or controls, any hostile government actions, civil commotion and fire or other 

casualty, legal actions attacking the validity of this Lease or the City's occupancy of the 

Premises, or any other casualties beyond the reasonable control of either party except casualties 

resulting from Lessee's negligent operation or maintenance of the Premises ("Force Majeure"), 

performance of such act shall be excused for the period of such delay, and the period for 

performance of such act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such delay.  

Force Majeure shall not include any bankruptcy, insolvency, or other financial inability on the 

part of either party hereto. 

 

18.10 Governing Law.  This Lease shall be governed, construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 

18.11 Interpretation.  The language of this Lease shall be construed simply according 

to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either party. 

 

18.12 Joint and Several Liability. If more than one person or entity executes this Lease 

as Lessee, each of them is jointly and severally liable for all of the obligations of Lessee 

hereunder. 

 

18.13 Lease Administration.  This Lease shall be administered on behalf of the City of 

Capitola, by  ______________, or by such person's duly-authorized designee (referred to 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 16 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

collectively herein as "City's Lease Administrator"), and on behalf of Lessee by: Kimberly 

Finley, County of Santa Cruz, 701 Ocean Street, Room 410, Santa Cruz, California 95060, 831-

454-2160, or by such other person as may be designated in writing by Lessee (referred to 

collectively herein as "Lessee's Lease Administrator"). 

 

18.14 Lessee's Lease Administration.  Lessee confirms that Lessee's Lease 

Administrator has been given full operational responsibility for compliance with the terms of this 

Lease.  Lessee shall provide City with a written schedule of its normal hours of business 

operation on the Premises, and Lessee's Lease Administrator or a representative designated 

thereby shall be (i) available to City on a twenty-four (24) hour a day, seven (7) days a week, 

basis, and (ii) present on the Premises during Lessee's normal business hours, to resolve 

problems or answer question pertaining to this Lease and Lessee's operations on the Premises. 

 

18.15 Liquidated Damages.  Any payments by Lessee to City under this Lease 

described as liquidated damages represent the parties' reasonable estimate of City's actual 

damages under the described circumstances, such actual damages being uncertain and difficult to 

ascertain in light of the impossibility of foreseeing the state of the leasing market at the time of 

the various deadlines set forth herein.  City may, at its election, take any of the liquidated 

damages assessed in any portion of this Lease as direct monetary payments from Lessee and/or 

as an increase of rent due from Lessee under this Lease. 

 

18.16 Modification.  The provisions of this Lease may not be modified, except by a 

written instrument signed by both parties. 

 

18.17 Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Lease is determined by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be 

affected thereby.  Each provision shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 

law. 

 

18.18 Payments.  Except as may otherwise be expressly stated, each payment required 

to be made by Lessee shall be in addition to, and not a substitute for, other payments to be made 

by Lessee. 

 

18.19 Successors & Assigns.  This Lease shall be binding on and inure to the benefit 

of the parties and their successors and assigns, except as may otherwise be provided herein. 

 

18.20 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of each and every provision of this 

Lease. 

 

18.21 Waiver.  No provision of this Lease or the breach  

thereof shall be deemed waived, except by written consent of the party against whom the waiver 

is claimed.  The waiver by City of any breach of any term, covenant or condition contained in 

this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant or condition of any 

subsequent breach thereof, or of any other term, covenant or condition contained in this Lease.  

City's subsequent acceptance of partial rent or performance by Lessee shall not be deemed to be 

an accord and satisfaction or a waiver of any preceding breach by Lessee of any term, covenant 

or condition of this Lease or of any right of City to a forfeiture of the Lease by reason of such 

breach, regardless of City's knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of City's acceptance.  

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 17 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

The failure on the part of City to require exact or full and complete compliance with any of the 

covenants, conditions of agreements of this Lease shall not be construed as in any manner 

changing or waiving the terms of this Lease or as estopping City from enforcing in full the 

provisions hereof.  No custom or practice which may arise between the parties hereto in the 

course of administering this Lease shall be construed to waive, estop or in any way lessen City's 

right to insist upon Lessee's full performance of, or compliance with, any term, covenant or 

condition of this Lease or to inhibit or prevent City's exercise of its rights with respect to any 

default, dereliction or breach of this Lease by Lessee. 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF CAPITOLA  COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 18 
  2005 WHARF ROAD # 8020 

 

Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager 

 

_________________________________ 

                                                          Date 

Matt Machado, Director 

Department of Public Works 

 

___________________________________ 

                                                          Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

City Attorney                                Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Office of County Counsel                    Date 

 APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE:  

 

___________________________________ 

Risk Management                                Date         

 RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Real Property                           Date 

 RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:  

 

 

___________________________________ 

                                                              Date 
           

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 

 A-1  

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Premises 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 

   

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

 

Without limiting Lessee’s indemnification obligations to City under this Lease, Lessee shall 

provide and maintain for the duration of this Lease insurance against claims for injuries to 

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the Lessee’s 

operation and use of the Leased Premises. The cost of such insurance shall be borne by the 

Lessee. 

 

1. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

 

 Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability, Occurrence form, Insurance Services Office Form 

CG0001. 

 

B. Automobile Liability covering all owned, non-owned and hired auto, Insurance 

Services Office form CA0001. 

 

C. Workers Compensation, as required by State of California and Employer’s 

Liability Insurance. 

 

D. Property Insurance: Lessee shall maintain property insurance coverage for all real 

property being leased at full replacement value, including improvements and 

betterments. Lessee shall also provide property insurance for all City-owned 

personal property contained within or on the leased Premises. The policy must be 

written on an “all risks” basis, including coverage for earthquake. The contract 

shall insure for not less than ninety (90) percent of the actual cash value of the 

personal property, and Lessee shall name City as an additional insured and loss 

payee. 

  

2. Minimum Limits of Insurance 

 

 Lessee shall maintain limits no less than: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability including Premises, Operations, Products and 

Completed Operations, Contractual Liability and Independent Contractors: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. 

The General Aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000 and shall be a Per Location 

Aggregate. Fire Damage Limit (Any One Fire) $300,000 and Medical Expense 

Limit (Any One Person) $5,000.  

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 

   

 

B. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury and property 

damage. Coverage will include contractual liability. 

 

C. Employers Liability: $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury or disease. 

Coverage shall include a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of City of 

Capitola.  

 

D. Property: Full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty provision. 

 

3. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

 

 Any liability deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by the 

City’s Risk Manager. The property insurance deductible shall not exceed $_____ per 

occurrence and shall be borne by Lessee.   

 

4. Other Insurance Provisions 

 

 The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 

contain the following provisions: 

 

 A. Additional Insured Endorsement 

 

Any general liability policy provided by Lessee shall contain an additional insured 

endorsement applying coverage to the City of Capitola, the members of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County and the officers, agents, employees and volunteers of the City, 

individually and collectively. 

 

 B. Primary Insurance Endorsement 

 

For any claims related to this Lease, the Lessee’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the City, the members of the Board of Supervisors of the County 

and the officers, agents, employees and volunteers of the City, individually and 

collectively. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, the members of the 

Board of Supervisors of the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall 

be excess of the Lessee’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

 C. Notice of Cancellation 

 

Each required insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 

canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City at the address shown in section 

of Lease entitled “Notices”. 

 

 

 

 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 

   

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

5. Qualifying Insurers 

 

 All required policies of insurance shall be issued by companies which have been 

approved to do business in the State of California by the State Department of Insurance, 

and which hold a current policy holder’s alphabetic and financial size category rating of 

not less than A- VII according to the current Best’s Key Rating guide, or a company of 

equal financial stability that is approved in writing by City’s Risk Manager. 

 

6. Proof of Insurance 

 

 Lessee shall, as soon as practicable following the placement of insurance required 

hereunder, but in no event later than the effective date of the Contract, deliver to City 

certified copies of the actual insurance policies specified herein, together with appropriate 

separate endorsements thereto, evidencing that Lessee has obtained such coverage for the 

period of the Contract.  Thereafter, copies of renewal policies, and appropriate separate 

endorsements thereof, shall be delivered to City within thirty (30) days prior to the 

expiration of the term of any policy required herein. 

 

7. Failure to Obtain or Maintain Insurance; City’s Remedies  

 

 Lessee’s failure to provide insurance specified or failure to furnish certificates of 

insurance, amendatory endorsements and certified copies of policies, or failure to make 

premium payments required by such insurance, shall constitute a material breach of the 

Lease, and City may, at its option, terminate the Lease for any such default by Lessee. 

 

8. No Limitations of Obligations 

 

 The foregoing insurance requirements as to the types and limits of insurance coverage to 

be maintained by Lessee, and any approval of said insurance by the City are not intended 

to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 

assumed by Lessee pursuant to the Lease, including, but not limited to, the provisions 

concerning indemnification. 

 

9. Review of Coverage 

 

 City retains the right at any time to review the coverage, form and amount of insurance 

required herein and may require Lessee to obtain insurance reasonably sufficient in 

coverage, form and amount to provide adequate protection against the kind and extent of 

risk which exists at the time a change in insurance is required.  

  

10. Self-Insurance 

 

 Lessee may, with the prior written consent of City’s Risk Manager, fulfill some or all of 

the insurance requirements contained in this Lease under a plan of self-insurance.  Lessee 

shall only be permitted to utilize such self-insurance if in the opinion of City’s Risk 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



 

 

   

Manager, Lessee’s (i) net worth, and (ii) reserves for payment of claims of liability 

against Lessee, are sufficient to adequately compensate for the lack of other insurance 

coverage required by this Lease.  Lessee’s utilization of self-insurance shall not in any 

way limit liabilities assumed by Lessee under this Lease. 

  

11. Lessees’ Insurance 

 

 Lessee shall require any sub-Lessee, of all or any portion of the Premises to provide the 

insurance coverage described herein prior to occupancy of the Premises. 

 

12. Waiver of Subrogation 

 

 Lessee and City waive all rights to recover against each other or against any other tenant 

or occupant of the building, or against the officers, directors, shareholders, partners, 

employees, agents or invitees of each other or of any other occupant or tenant of the 

building, from any Claims (as defined in the Article entitled “Indemnity”) against either 

of them and from any damages to the fixtures, personal property, Lessee’s improvements, 

and alterations of either City or Lessee in or on the Premises and the Property, to the 

extent that the proceeds received from any insurance  carried by either City or Lessee, 

other than proceeds from any program of self-insurance, covers any such Claim or 

damage. Included in any policy or policies of insurance provided by Lessee shall be a 

standard waiver of rights of subrogation against City by the insurance company issuing 

said policy or policies.  
 

8.E.2

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

R
A

F
T

 C
ap

it
o

la
 L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 L

ea
se

)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



8.E.3

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

D
A

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

et
tl

em
en

t 
20

04
  (

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
ea

se
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider Bail Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution repealing Resolution No. 4149 and 
adopting the new bail schedule. 

BACKGROUND: A regular update of the City’s Bail Schedule, the official list of fines for local 
violations, is necessary to maintain a Schedule that is consistent with the Capitola Municipal 
Code. New ordinances must be reviewed and incorporated to ensure the Bail Schedule reflects 
the City’s current code. This Schedule must also be kept up to date for the Capitola Police 
Department to accurately process citations of code violations and for the use of the Santa Cruz 
County Court database.   

When calculating the base bail amount, the City considers other local jurisdictions’ bail 
schedules and remaining consistent with similar local violations (for example, failure to get a 
required sign permit holds a base bail of $100 in Capitola and Scotts Valley). While the base 
bail amounts listed in the City’s Bail Schedule may seem low, it is important to remember that 
once infractions are sent to the Santa Cruz County Superior Court, fines are added so that 
violators ultimately pay a higher price than the City’s base bail. Generally, the base bail listed is 
what the City of Capitola receives as the citing agency. 

DISCUSSION: Below is a list of Municipal Code sections that require additions to the Bail 
Schedule. The changes are proposed because the code section was newly adopted or revised
since the last bail schedule update. There are also several numbering changes required 
because of the recent adoption of Ch. 17 Zoning Code, which are highlighted in the attached 
exhibit rather than in the table below.   

The full Bail Schedule, redlined to show changes, is also attached to this report as an exhibit to 
the resolution. 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER

CODE 
SECTION

VIOLATION DESCRIPTION BASE BAIL REASON 
FOR 
ADDITION

1031 5.38.020 TOBACCO RETAILER LICENSE 
REQUIRED

$  1,500 Code 
section 

8.F

Packet Pg. 157



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

revised

5.38.030 SELLING OF FLAVORED 
TOBACCO PROHIBITED

$ 100 Code 
section 
revised

12.64.030 SIDEWALK VENDING PERMIT 
REQUIRED

1st offense
$50
2nd offense
$100

Addition to 
Code1037

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.F

Packet Pg. 158



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

RESOLUTION NO. __

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO. 4149 AND ADOPTING A NEW BAIL SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Capitola adopted Resolution No. 4149 
amending the City's Bail Schedule on April 25, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola determines the fines for violating the Capitola Municipal 
Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted Ordinances which require inclusion of fines and 
changes to existing fines from its last adoption of the City’s Bail Schedule in 2019; and 

WHEREAS, staff has conducted a thorough review of the City’s Bail Schedule and has 
determined and recommends City Council approval of the proposed additions, deletions, and 
corrections presented to the City Council at its meeting on July 22, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola 
as follows:  

1. Resolution No. 4149 is hereby repealed in its entirety.

2. The City of Capitola Bail Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. Proposed 
new additions are indicated in red. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 22nd day of July, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

_______
Yvette Brooks, Mayor

ATTEST:

 _
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk

8.F

Packet Pg. 159



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

EXHIBIT A
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

BAIL SCHEDULE 2021
 Code

Section Violation Description Base Bail 

1.40.020 CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION LIMITATIONS VIOLATION $     250.00 

4.04.010
VIOLATION OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH CODE PROVISIONS:  
(MISDEMEANORS & INFRACTIONS)

 1ST  OFFENSE $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $     200.00 

 3RD  OFFENSE $     500.00 

5.06.030
PEDDLING OR SOLICITING WITHOUT A BUSINESS LICENSE IS 
PROHIBITED

$       75.00 

5.06.040
PEDDLING, SOLICITING, OR CANVASSING UPON PREMISES 
WHERE "NO SOLICITORS" ARE INDICATED IS PROHIBITED

$       75.00 

5.06.050
PEDDLING, SOLICITING, OR CANVASSING OUTSIDE OF 
DESIGNATED HOURS ARE PROHIBITED

$       75.00 

5.08.230A VALID TAXICAB OWNER'S PERMIT REQUIRED $       40.00 

5.08.230B VALID TAXICAB OWNER'S DRIVER'S PERMIT REQUIRED $       40.00 

5.12.020 VALID CARDROOM OWNER/DEALER PERMIT REQUIRED $       40.00

5.12.040 USE OF HOUSE PLAYERS PROHIBITED $       40.00

5.12.050 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES PROHIBITED $       40.00

5.12.060 LOITERING PROHIBITED $       40.00

5.12.080 VALID CARDROOM LICENSE REQUIRED $        40.00

5.12.140 MINORS IN CARDROOMS PROHIBTED $        40.00

5.14.040 FAILURE TO REGISTER SECURITY ALARM SYSTEM $     100.00 

5.14.090 FALSE ALARM FINES:

 THREE (3) OR FOUR (4) FALSE ALARMS IN ANY CALENDAR YR $     100.00 

 FIVE (5) FALSE ALARMS IN ANY CALENDAR YEAR $     150.00 

 SIX (6) OR MORE FALSE ALARMS IN ANY CALENDAR YEAR $     200.00 

5.16.040 ALLOWING MINOR AT BINGO GAME $       40.00

5.16.150 SERVING ALCOHOL AT BINGO GAME $       40.00

5.16.180 CONDUCTING BINGO GAME WITHOUT PERMIT $       40.00

5.16.280 BINGO PERMIT POSTING REQUIRED $       40.00

5.20.020 OPERATING KENNEL OR PET SHOP WITHOUT PERMIT $     500.00 

5.24.020 ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT REQUIRED $     110.00 

5.24.090 ENTERTAINMENT PERMITS - VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITIONS $     110.00 

5.32.030 FIREARMS LICENSE REQUIRED $     500.00 

5.36.030
RETAIL CANNABIS LICENSE REQUIRED FOR ALL COMMERCIAL 
CANNABIS ACTIVITY – MEDICINAL AND ADULT USE

$    1,000.00

5.38.020 TOBACCO RETAILER LICENSE REQUIRED $     1,500.00

5.38.030 SELLING OF FLAVORED TOBACCO PROHIBITED $     100.00

5.40.020
VENDING MACHINE SALES OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS ARE 
PROHIBITED

$       75.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 160



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

5.40.030
VENDING MACHINE SALES OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS ARE 
ALLOWED ONLY IF MACHINES ARE TOKEN OPERATED

$     250.00 

5.40.040 VENDOR-ASSISTED SALE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS IS REQUIRED $     250.00 

6.08.020 INTERFERENCE WITH POUNDMASTER $     100.00 

6.08.120
FAILURE OR REFUSAL TO STATE TRUE NAME/EVIDENCE OF 
RABIES VACCINATION/LICENSE

$       50.00 

6.12.030 VICIOUS/DANGEROUS ANIMALS $       50.00 

6.14.010 DOG LICENSE REQUIRED $       30.00 

6.14.020 DISPLAY DOG LICENSE REQUIRED $       25.00 

6.14.040 VACCINATION REQUIRED $       40.00 

6.14.130 NUMBER OF FEMALE DOG KEPT IN ONE PLACE $       20.00 

6.14.200 DOGS IN PUBLIC PLACES - PROHIBITED LOCATIONS $       40.00 

6.14.215 FAILURE OF OWNER TO PICK UP AFTER DOG DEFECATING $       25.00 

6.14.380 ANIMALS DOGS DEFECATING IN PUBLIC PROHIBITED $       30.00 

6.14.310 DOGS AT LARGE PROHIBITED $       35.00 

6.14.320 LEASH REQUIRED FOR DOGS OFF PREMISES $       30.00 

6.14.330 SAFETY OF ANIMALS IN MOTOR VEHICLES REQUIRED $       60.00 

6.14.340 SAFETY OF ANIMALS IN PARKED VEHICLES REQUIRED $       60.00 

6.14.380
ANIMALS DEFECATING ON PUBLIC/PRIVATE PROPERTY 
PROHIBITED

$       30.00 

6.14.390 ANIMAL NOISE NUISANCE $       30.00 

6.14.400 DOGS THREATENING OR INJURING PERSONS PROHIBITED $     100.00 

6.14.410
DOMESTICATED ANIMAL KILLING OR INJURING OTHER 
DOMESTICATED ANIMALS

$     100.00 

6.14.420 PROHIBITION OF LIVESTOCK OR WILD ANIMALS TO BE AT LARGE $       30.00 

6.14.430
PROHIBITION AGAINST DOGS THREATENING OR INJURING WILD 
GAME OR LIVESTOCK

$     100.00 

6.14.440 DOGS THREATENING OR INJURING PERSONS PROHIBITED $     100.00 

6.14.445 POSSESSION OF WILD ANIMAL SPECIES PROHIBITED $     110.00 

6.14.455 USE OF STEEL-JAWED LEG-HOLD TRAPS PROHIBITED $     110.00 

6.14.590 DUTY TO REPORT ANIMAL BITES REQUIRED $       50.00 

6.16.030 MANDATORY SPAYING/NEUTERING $     110.00 

6.16.040
CARE OF FERAL CATS PROHIBITED WITHOUT SIGNED 
STATEMENT

$       50.00 

6.18.060 PERMIT FOR WILD ANIMALS REQUIRED $     110.00 

6.18.070 KEEPING DISEASED ANIMALS PROHIBITED $       50.00 

6.18.100 PLACEMENT OF DEAD ANIMALS IN PUBLIC PLACES PROHIBITED $       20.00 

6.18.120 WILLFUL INJURY TO WILDLIFE PROHIBITED $       30.00 

6.20.020
FEEDING WATERFOWL/PIGEONS IN RESTRICTED AREA 
PROHIBITED

$       60.00 

6.20.030 SELLING WATERFOWL/PIGEONS PROHIBITED $       60.00 

6.20.040
RELEASING WATERFOWL/PIGEONS IN RESTRICTED AREA 
PROHIBITED

$       30.00 

6.24.010 FEEDING WILD RODENTS AND VERMIN PROHIBITED $       30.00 

8.04.020 ACCUMULATION OF REFUSE - PUBLIC/PRIVATE PROPERTY $       30.00 

8.04.040 ACCUMULATION OF COMMERCIAL GARBAGE $     100.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 161



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

8.04.050
PLACE, DEPOSIT, KEEP, BURY ANY GARBAGE ON, IN, OR UNDER
ANY PREMISES

$     100.00 

8.04.060 ACCUMULATION OF GARBAGE IN PUBLIC $       50.00 

8.04.068 MANDATORY GARBAGE SERVICE $       50.00 

8.04.070
GARBAGE CONTAINERS OUT OF PUBLIC VIEW ON NON-
COLLECTION DAYS

$       50.00 

8.04.080
HAULING OF TRASH BY ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION 
BESIDES THOSE DESIGNATED BY THE CITY TO BE EXCEPTIONS 
PROHIBITED

$     250.00 

8.04.100 COLLECTION- INTERFERENCE PROHIBITED $     250.00

8.04.110 BURNING PROHIBITED $     100.00 

8.04.120 UNAUTHORIZED USE OF DUMPSTER $     100.00 

8.06.035 RECYCLING REQUIRED $       50.00 

8.06.050 RECYCLABLE WASTE MATERIAL - UNAUTHORIZED COLLECTION $       50.00 

8.07.070
REDUCTION OF SINGLE-USE PLASTIC AND PAPER CARRYOUT 
BAGS

 1ST OFFENSE (30 days or more after first warning) $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE (60 days or more after first warning) $     200.00 

 3RD OFFENSE (90 days or more after first warning) $     500.00 

8.08.100A
WILLFULLY OBSTRUCTING, HINDERING OR DELAYING 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE DURING DECLARED EMERGENCY

$     500.00

8.08.100B
VIOLATING ANY RULE OR REGULATION DURING DECLARED 
EMERGENCY OR DISASTER

$     500.00

8.08.100C
UNATHROIZED WEARING OR DISPLAYING OF EMERGENCY 
IDENTIFICATION DURING DELCARED EMERGENCY OR DISASTER

$     500.00

8.12.010 FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS- PERMIT REQUIRED $     100.00

8.12.070 FOOD HANDLER – PERMIT REQUIRED $     100.00

8.14.010 UNIT PRICING OF COMMODOTIES REQUIRED $     100.00

8.20.010 POWER BOATS PROHIBITED ON SOQUEL CREEK $     100.00 

8.24.030 WATER WELL PERMIT REQUIRED $     100.00 

8.36.030 PROHIBITED FOOD SERVICE WARE:

 1ST OFFENSE $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $     200.00 

 3RD/FUTURE OFFENSE $     300.00 

8.36.035 PROHIBITED RETAIL SALES OF POLYSTYRENE FOAM PRODUCTS:

 1ST OFFENSE $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $     200.00 

 3RD/FUTURE OFFENSE $     300.00 

8.36.040
REQUIRED BIODEGRADABLE AND COMPOSTABLE DISPOSABLE 
FOOD SERVICE WARE:

 1ST OFFENSE $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $     200.00 

 3RD/FUTURE OFFENSE $     300.00 

8.38.050 PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN INDOOR PUBLIC PLACES $       30.00 

8.38.060 PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN OUTDOOR PUBLIC PLACES $       30.00 

8.38.070 PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN CERTAIN PLACES $       30.00

8.38.090 SMOKING POLICY IN PLACES OF EMPLOYMENT REQUIREMENT $       30.00

8.F

Packet Pg. 162



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

8.38.120 POSTINGS OF SIGNS $       50.00 

8.38.130A
REQUESTING AND EXAMINING IDENTIFICATION TO ESTABLISH 
PURCHASER’S AGE REQUIRED

$   50.00 

8.38.130B
SELLING TOBACCO PRODUCTS NEAR SCHOOLS OR PUBLIC 
LIBRARIES PROHIBITED

$       50.00 

8.38.150
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SMOKING REGULATIONS/SMOKING IN 
PROHIBTED AREAS

$       50.00

8.40.130A
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SAFE DRUG AND SHARPS DISPOSAL 
PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

$       50.00

8.40.140H
KNOWING AND WILLFUL FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SAFE DRUG 
AND SHARPS DISPOSAL PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS

$     500.00

8.46.030 BOAT MOORING $       60.00 

8.60.020 GRAFFITI PROHIBITED $     500.00 

8.60.050
DISPLAYING AEROSOL SPRAY PAINT CONTAINERS AND MARKER 
PENS IN ANY AREA ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC WITHOUT 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE IS PROHIBITED.

$     250.00 

8.64.060
ANY VIOLATION OF ORDERS OR DIRECTIVES FOR WATER 
SPORTS AND EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED.

$     100.00 

8.68.010
ANY TRANSFERRING OF OWNERSHIP OF A FIREARM WITHOUT 
AN EFFECTIVE TRIGGER LOCK AND PRINTED MATERIAL 
ADVISING SAFE STORAGE PRACTICES IS PROHIBITED

$     250.00 

9.04.030 PUBLIC NUDITY $       75.00 

9.08.010 UNLAWFUL OPERATION OF TATTOO BUSINESS $     100.00  

9.10.010
REMAINING ON BUSINESS PROPERTY AFTER REQUESTED TO 
LEAVE

 1ST OFFENSE $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $     250.00 

9.12.010 NOISE PROHIBITED, 10PM TO 8AM $     110.00 

9.12.015A
MECHANICAL SWEEPERS, PARKING LOT VACUUM MACHINES, 
AND LEAF BLOWERS ON NON-RESIDENTIAL PRIVATE PROPERTY 
PROHIBITED BETWEEN 11 PM TO 7 AM

$       50.00 

9.12.015B

MECHANICAL SWEEPERS, PARKING LOT VACUUM MACHINES, 
AND LEAF BLOWERS ON RESIDENTIAL PRIVATE PROPERTY 
PROHIBITED WEEKDAYS BETWEEN 5 PM AND 8 AM AND 
WEEKENDS BETWEEN 4 PM AND 10 AM

$       50.00 

9.12.015C LEAF BLOWERS IN EXCESS OF 65 dBA PROHIBITED $       50.00 

9.12.015D
UNLAWFUL TO CAUSE LEAVES OR DEBRIS FROM LEAF BLOWER 
OPERATIONS TO BE BLOWN OR DEPOSITED ON OTHER 
PROPERTY 

$       50.00 

9.12.040 AMPLIFIED SOUND WITHOUT A PERMIT $     100.00 

 9.12.070
SOUND AMPLIFICATION PERMITS - VIOLATION OF PERMIT 
CONDITIONS

$     100.00 

 9.20.010 DISCHARGING FIREARMS $     250.00

 9.20.015
POSSESSION OF FIREARMS ON CITY PROPERTY OR PUBLIC 
PROPERTY IN THE VICINITY OF A SCHOOL PROHIBITED

$     500.00 

 9.22.050
ANY DISPLAY OR TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF A FIREARM ON 
THE SATURDAY NIGHT SPECIALS LIST IS PROHIBITED

$     250.00 

 9.24.010 UNLAWFUL SALE OF FIREWORKS $     500.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 163



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

 9.24.020 UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE OF FIREWORKS $     500.00 

 9.28.010 NO VEHICLES ON BEACH $     100.00 

 9.28.020 ILLEGAL CAMPING ON BEACH $       50.00 

 9.28.030 NO OPEN FIRES ON BEACHES $       50.00 

 9.28.040 UNLAWFUL SALES ON BEACHES $       50.00

 9.30.020 VIOLATION OF SURF SCHOOL REGULATIONS $       50.00

 9.30.030 OPERATION OF SURF SCHOOL WITHOUT A PERMIT:

 1ST OFFENSE $       50.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $    100.00 

 3RD OFFENSE $     250.00 

 9.32.020
CONSUMING INTOXICATING LIQUORS IN PUBLIC PLACE, WAY OR 
SCHOOL GROUNDS

$       50.00

 9.32.030
CONTAINERS PROHIBITED ON STREET, PARK, SCHOOL 
GROUNDS, BEACH 

$       50.00 

 9.34.010 PUBLIC URINATION / DEFECATION PROHIBITED $       50.00 

 9.40.010
UNAUTHORIZED DISPLAY OF SIGNS ON PUBLIC STREETS, PATHS 
OR RIGHTS OF WAY PROHIBITED

$       50.00

 9.44.060 UNLAWFUL DISTRIBUTION OF DRUG PARAPHENALIA $       50.00

 9.48.020 CAMPING PROHIBITED $       50.00 

 9.52.010 UNENCLOSED STORAGE IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES PROHIBTED $       50.00

 9.61.040 CANNABIS PROCESSING AND CULTIVATION PROHIBITED $  1,000.00  

10.04.030 PERSONS OTHER THAN OFFICIALS NOT TO DIRECT TRAFFIC $       50.00 

10.04.040 OBEDIENCE TO POLICE OR OTHER AUTHORIZED OFFICERS $     100.00 

10.04.080 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES TO OBEY TRAFFIC REGULATIONS $       30.00 

10.04.070 OBSTRUCTION OR INTERFERENCE/ERASED CHALK MARKS $       70.00 

10.28.010 DRIVING THROUGH FUNERAL PROCESSION $       50.00 

10.28.020 CLINGING TO MOVING VEHICLES $       50.00 

10.28.030 COMMERCIAL VEHICLES USING PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS $       50.00 

10.28.040 RIDING OR DRIVING ON SIDEWALK $       50.00 

10.28.050 NEW PAVEMENT MARKINGS $       30.00 

10.28.060 LIMITED ACCESS $       30.00 

10.28.070 RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF FREEWAYS $       30.00 

10.28.080 OBEDIENCE TO BARRIERS AND SIGNS $       50.00 

10.28.090 OBSTRUCTING INTERSECTION OR CROSSWALK $       50.00 

10.28.100 TRAFFIC BARRIERS $       50.00 

10.28.110 FUNERAL ZONE VIOLATION $       50.00

10.32.020 PEDESTRIANS MUST USE CROSSWALKS BUSINESS DISTRICT $       30.00 

10.32.030C REMAINING ON MEDIANS PROHIBITED $       20.00

10.32.030D ENTERING A ROUNDABOUT IS PROHIBITED $       20.00

10.32.030E SUBSEQUENT OFFENSE WITHIN 6 MONTHS $     100.00

10.36.010 PARKING PERMIT REQUIRED $       48.00 

10.36.020 STOPPING OR STANDING IN PARKWAYS $       23.00 

10.36.040 NO PARKING AREAS AS POSTED $       41.00 

10.36.045 EXPIRED METER ZONE $       36.00 

10.36.060 CITY HALL PARKING LOT USE: ONE-HOUR AND PERMIT PARKING $       23.00 

10.36.065 PARKING METER TAMPERING PROHIBITED $     100.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 164



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

10.36.070 STORAGE OF VEHICLE ON STREET +72 HOURS:

 1ST OFFENSE $       73.00 

 2ND OFFENSE $       98.00 

 3RD OFFENSE $     128.00 

10.36.070A
PARKING A VEHICLE ON A STREET OR ALLEY FOR MORE THAN 72 
CONSECUTIVE HOURS IS PROHIBITED

$       65.00 

10.36.070B STORAGE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ON PUBLIC STREET 

10.36.070B  1ST OFFENSE $       50.00 

10.36.070B  2ND OFFENSE $     100.00 

10.36.090 REPAIRING VEHICLE ON PUBLIC STREET $       50.00 

10.36.100 CHARGING FOR CAR WASH ON PUBLIC STREET $        50.00

10.36.110 PARKING ADJACENT TO SCHOOLS $       23.00 

10.36.120 PARKING ON NARROW STREET:  ON OR BETWEEN WHITE LINES $       38.00 

10.36.130 PARKING ON GRADES:  WHEELS NOT CURBED $       38.00 

10.36.140 PEDDLER AND VENDOR PARKING $       23.00 

10.36.140B VENDOR LICENSE REQUIRED $       50.00 

10.36.150 EMERGENCY PARKING SIGNS $       30.00 

10.36.160 DISABLED COMMERCIAL VEHICLES:  WARNING SIGNALS $       20.00 

10.36.170A RED ZONE $       43.00 

10.36.170B YELLOW ZONE $       41.00 

10.36.170C PASSENGER ZONE WHITE CURB $       41.00 

10.36.170D GREEN CURB - 24 MINUTES $       41.00 

10.36.180
PARKING OF TALL VEHICLES WITHIN 100 FT OF AN 
INTERSECTION: 

10.36.180  1ST OFFENSE $       50.00 

10.36.180  2ND OFFENSE $     100.00 

10.36.195 NO PARKING WEEKENDS AND HOLIDAYS WITHOUT PERMIT $       48.00 

10.36.210 PARALLEL PARKING 18 INCHES FROM CURB:  ONE-WAY STREETS $       38.00 

10.36.220 DIAGONAL PARKING $       31.00 

10.36.230 PARKED OUT OF SPACE $       31.00 

10.36.240 NO STOPPING ZONES $       23.00 

10.36.250 TAXICAB STANDS $       23.00 

10.36.270 HEAVY VEHICLES - USE OF STREETS $       30.00 

10.36.280 HEAVY VEHICLES - PARKING $       53.00 

10.36.290 PARKING RESTRICTIONS AUTHORIZED:  TWO-HOUR PARKING $       39.00 

10.36.360 STOPPING OR STANDING OR PARKING IN ALLEYS $       38.00 

10.36.380
PARKING RESTRICTIONS CITY-CONTROLLED OFF-STREET 
PARKING

$       30.00 

10.44.030
PERSONAL TRANSPORTATION DEVICE (PTD) PROHIBITED ON 
SIDEWALKS

$        30.00

10.44.040
OPERATING ON RIVERVIEW PATH FROM MACDONALD TO 
STOCKTON PROHIBITED

$     100.00 

10.44.060
PARKING IN PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY PROHIBITED

$     100.00 

10.44.070 UNLAWFUL PARKING $        31.00

8.F

Packet Pg. 165



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

10.44.080 UNAUTHORIZED RACING AND/OR TRICK RIDING $      100.00

10.44.090 PTD/BIKE RACK PERMIT REQUIRED $        48.00

10.44.100 VALID PEDICAB OWNER’S PERMIT REQUIRED  $      40.00

10.44.120 BICYCLE SERIAL NUMBER DESTRUCTION $       100.00

10.48.010 TRUCK ROUTES $    50.00 

10.48.020
ADVERTISING VEHICLES WITH SOUND AMPLIFYING 
LOUDSPEAKER

$       50.00 

10.48.040 COMMERCIAL VEHICLES PROHIBITED FROM STREETS $       50.00 

10.56.010 MAXIMUM VEHICLE LENGTH $       73.00 

12.04.020
PERMITS ARE REQUIRED TO CONSTRUCT CURBS, GUTTERS AND 
SIDEWALKS

$     100.00

12.08.010
PERMIT TO OPEN, EXCAVATE OR TRENCH IN PUBLIC STREET 
REQUIRED

$     100.00

12.12.110
PERMITS ARE REQUIRED FOR ANY WORK DONE TO A HERITAGE 
TREE, DISREGARDING MAINTENANCE TRIMMING

$250 / $1,000

12.12.120

ANY DESTRUCTION VISITED UPON ANY PUBLIC TREE, OR 
DESTRUCTION TO A PRIVATE TREE THAT COULD 
SUBSEQUENTLY HARM A PUBLIC TREE WITHOUT FIRST 
OBTAINING A PERMIT IS PROHIBITED

$250 / $1,000 

12.12.130
FAILURE TO PROTECT OR MAINTAIN TREES ON 
CONSTRUCTION/DEMOLITION SITES IS A VIOLATION

$250 / $1,000 

12.12.160
CUTTING OR REMOVAL OF TREES IN THE CITY WITHOUT A TREE 
REMOVAL PERMIT IS PROHIBITED

$250 / $1,000 

12.12.270
VIOLATION OF COMMUNITY TREE / FOREST MANAGEMENT 
ORDINANCE

TREE 
REPLACE-
MENT VALUE

12.40.015 UNLAWFUL USE OF PUBLIC PARKS $     100.00

12.42.010
DEPOT HILL BLUFF - PROHIBITION AGAINST GRADING, 
DISTURBING, ERECTING ANY STRUCTURE, MINING OR 
EXTRACTING MATERIALS:

 1ST OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     250.00 

 3RD OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     500.00 

12.44.010
PROHIBITION LIMITING BOATS ON CAPITOLA BEACH DURING 
WORKING HOURS

$       50.00 

12.48.010 DOGS PROHIBITED ON WHARF $       50.00 

12.48.020 DIVING AND JUMPING FROM WHARF PROHIBITED $       50.00 

12.48.030 TYING BOATS TO WHARF PROHIBITED $       50.00 

12.48.040 OVERHEAD CASTING FROM WHARF PROHIBITED $       30.00 

12.48.050 UNAUTHORIZED VEHICLES PROHIBITED ON WHARF $     108.00

12.48.060 BURNING ON WHARF PROHIBITED $       50.00 

12.48.070 TRESPASSING ON WHARF WHILE CLOSED PROHIBITED $       50.00 

12.48.090 WATER SKIING/JET SKIING, CAPITOLA BEACH $       50.00 

12.48.110 POWER BOAT, CAPITOLA BEACH $       50.00 

12.48.120 30 MINUTE FLOATING DOCK LIMIT $       30.00 

12.48.130
PRIVATE VOLLEYBALL NETS ON BEACH PROHIBITED DURING 
THE SUMMER PERIOD

$       30.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 166



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

12.48.140
GLASS CONTAINERS AND ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTAINERS 
LARGER THAN ONE GALLON PROHIBITED ON PUBLIC BEACH

$       30.00 

12.52.010
SKATEBOARDING IS PROHIBITED IN (NEARLY ALL OF) 
ESPLANADE /CAPITOLA VILLAGE AREA

$       30.00 

12.52.010A SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED ON SIDEWALKS OR CURBS $       30.00 

12.52.010B SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED - ESPLANADE PARK/RESTROOMS $       30.00 

12.52.010C
SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED - PACIFIC COVE MOBILEHOME 
PARK AND PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT

$       30.00 

12.52.010D
SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED - SIDEWALKS OF CERTAIN 
STREETS LOCATED IN CAPITOLA VILLAGE

$       30.00 

12.52.010E
SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED - SIDEWALKS OF CERTAIN 
STREETS LOCATED IN CAPITOLA VILLAGE

$       30.00 

12.52.020
SKATEBOARDING PROHIBITED IN ANY AREAS NOT INCLUDED IN 
SECTION 12.52.010 IF ONE OR MORE SIGNS IS POSTED 
PROHIBITING SKATEBOARDING 

$       30.00 

12.52.030A SKATEBOARDING - STOP AT ALL STOP SIGNS/RED LIGHTS $       30.00 

12.52.030B SKATEBOARDING - YIELD TO VEHICLES AT YIELD SIGNS $       30.00 

12.52.030C SKATEBOARDING - YIELD TO PEDESTRIANS AT CROSSWALKS $       30.00

12.52.030D
SKATEBOARDING - DO NOT IMPEDE TRAFFIC OR INTERFERE 
WITH THE FLOW OF VEHICULAR TRAFFIC

$       30.00 

12.52.030E
SKATEBOARDING - YIELD TO APPROACHING VEHICLES WHEN 
ENTERING ANY ROADWAY

$       30.00 

12.52.030F
SKATEBOARDING - DO NOT BE TOWED BY A MOTOR VEHICLE OF 
ANY SPEED OR A BICYCLE AT ANY UNSAFE SPEED

$       50.00 

12.52.030G SKATEBOARDING - YIELD BICYCLE LANES TO BICYCLES $       30.00 

12.52.030H
SKATEBOARDING - DO NOT TRAVEL INTO PATH OF A CLOSE 
VEHICLE CONSTITUTING AN IMMEDIATE HAZARD

$       30.00 

12.52.030I SKATEBOARDING WITH DUE CARE AT A SAFE SPEED VIOLATION $       50.00 

12.52.040

WHEN SKATEBOARDING ON SIDEWALKS THAT ARE NOT 
PROHIBITED, SKATEBOARDERS MUST YIELD TO ALL 
PEDESTRIANS AND PROCEED WITH CARE WHEN NEAR 
PEDESTRIANS

$       30.00 

12.54.020 UNLAWFUL USE OF SKATEBOARD PARK $       30.00

12.56.010 ENCROACHMENT WITHOUT PERMIT $     100.00 

12.56.090
INSTALLING PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS OR OBSTRUCTIONS IN 
ANY PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IS PROHIBITED, BARRING THE 
SPECIFIED EXCEPTIONS

$     100.00 

12.58.030
ENTERING OR REMAINING ON POSTED PROPERTY WITHOUT 
WRITTEN PERMISSION OF CITY MANAGER

 1ST OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     100.00 

 2ND OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     200.00 

 3RD OFFENSE IN A 12-MONTH PERIOD $     500.00 

12.60.010 TRESPASS ON PUBLIC TRANSIT FACILITIES $100 / $500

12.64.020 DISPLAY OR SALE OF MERCHANDISE PROHIBITED $       50.00 

12.64.030 SIDEWALK VENDING PERMIT REQUIRED

 1ST OFFENSE $      50.00

 2ND OFFENSE $     100.00

8.F

Packet Pg. 167



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

13.02.090
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH PLUMBING FIXTURE RETROFIT 
REQUIREMENTS IS PROHIBITED

$     100.00 

13.04.050
PUBLIC SEWAGE CONNECTION REQUIRED FOR BUILDINGS 
INTENDED FOR HUMAN HABITATION

$     500.00 

13.16.070 UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE TO STORM DRAIN SYSTEM $     500.00

13.16.180
VIOLATION OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH STORM WATER 
POLLUTION PREVENTION AND PROTECTION ORDINANCE MAY BE 
SUBJECT TO ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS OUTLINED IN TITLE 4

 1ST OFFENSE $     100.00

 2ND OFFENSE $     200.00 

 3RD OFFENSE $     500.00 

15.04.020 BUILDING CODE VIOLATIONS $     100.00 

15.12.010 ILLEGAL USE OF MOBILEHOME $       50.00 

15.14.010
TRANSPORTING A MOBILEHOME ACROSS PUBLIC 
STREETS/ALLEYS WITHOUT A PERMIT IS PROHIBITED

$     250.00 

15.14.020
APPLICATION TO TRANSPORT A MOBILEHOME, FILED 3 DAYS 
PRIOR TO ANTICIPATED TRANSPORTATION IS REQUIRED

$     250.00 

15.14.030 MOBILEHOME: A FIFTY DOLLAR PERMIT FEE IS REQUIRED $     250.00 

15.14.040
ALLOWING A MOBILEHOME TO STAND ON A PUBLIC 
STREET/ALLEY FOR MORE THAN 12 HOURS IS PROHIBITED

$     250.00 

17.54.070
17.60.010

ERECTING FENCE WITHOUT A PERMIT $     100.00 

17.81.110
17.74.030

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE WITHOUT A PERMIT $     100.00 

17.57.020
17.80.030

PERMIT REQUIRED FOR SIGN $     100.00 

17.57.040
17.80.060

SIGN PROHIBITED VIOLATION $     100.00 

17.57.050
17.80.110

TEMPORARY SIGN VIOLATION $     100.00 

17.57.060 CENTRAL VILLAGE SIGN VIOLATION $     100.00 

17.57.070
17.80.150

PERMANENT SIGN VIOLATION $     100.00 

17.81.060
17.96.020

ANIMAL OFFENSIVE OR ENDANGER TO NEIGHBORS $     100.00 

17.81.060B
17.96.020B

NUMBER OF ANIMALS ALLOWED IN SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING $     100.00 

17.81.060C
17.96.020B

NUMBER OF ANIMALS ALLOWED IN APARTMENT OR MOBILE 
HOME

$     100.00

17.96.020C CHICKENS KEPT IN NON-PERMITTED SPACE $     100.00

17.96.020D HONEYBEES KEPT IN NON-PERMITTED SPACE $     100.00

17.96.020E PROHIBITED ANIMAL(S) $     100.00

17.98.080

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES ARE PROHIBITED 
WITHIN 500 FEET OF SPECIFIED ZONING DISTRICTS (FAMILY 
RESIDENCE, SCHOOLS, PARKS AND OPEN SPACE, PUBLIC 
FACILITIES, ETC.) AND WITHIN 3,000 FEET OF COASTLINE

$     250.00 

17.81.140
17.104.040

DISH ANTENNAE PROHIBITED $      80.00 

17.60.020 FAILURE TO OBTAIN CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT $     100.00 

8.F

Packet Pg. 168



Bail Schedule Update 
July 22, 2021

17.124.020

8.F

Packet Pg. 169



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF JULY 22, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Designation of the Voting Delegate and Alternate for the 2021 League of 
California Cities Annual Conference

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate voting delegate and alternate(s), if desired.

BACKGROUND: The 2021 League of California Cities (League) Annual Conference and Expo
is scheduled for September 22 through 24. The priority of the League remains the health and 
safety of participants; the conference will be held at the Sacramento Convention Center and the 
League will ensure safety protocols are followed and strengthened if necessary. At this meeting, 
the League holds its annual business meeting to consider and act on resolutions that establish 
League policy. 

DISCUSSION: To vote on League items at the Conference, the City must designate a voting 
delegate. These representatives must be appointed by City Council action. The League needs 
to be notified of appointments by September 15, 2021. 

Each city should appoint one delegate and up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom 
may vote if the designated voting delegate is unable to serve in that capacity. The delegate and 
alternate(s) must be registered to attend the conference, but they need not register for the entire 
conference; they may register for Friday only. At least one voting delegate or alternate must be 
present at the Business Meeting on Friday and in possession of the voting card to cast a vote.

FISCAL IMPACT: In the past, Council Members have been permitted to use funds budgeted for 
travel and training expenses to attend the conference. The full conference cost for the appointed 
voting delegate is $600, with lodging costing at a minimum an estimated $650 for three nights. 
A single-day ticket, for the Friday on which voting takes place, costs $325. 

Since 2017 the City has budgeted $2,000 for training/travel for each Council Member ($10,000 
total), and not allowed sharing of training/travel budget between Council Members. The adopted 
FY 2021-22 Budget currently includes $2,500 total for all Council training and travel.

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

8.G

Packet Pg. 170



League Voting Delegate 
July 22, 2021

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.G

Packet Pg. 171


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Item 8.B - one staff provided attachment
	Attachment: Item 8.B - one staff provided attachment

	B. Item 8.C - eight public comment emails
	Attachment: Item 8.C - eight public comment emails


	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	6. STAFF / CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS
	7. CONSENT ITEMS
	A. Approve Council Minutes
	Printout: Approve Council Minutes
	1. 6-24-21 draft
	2. 6-24-21 draft SPECIAL

	B. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 6-4-21 Check Register
	2. 6-11-21 Check Register
	3. 6-18-21 Check Register
	4. 6-25-21 Check Register
	5. 7-2-21 Check Register

	C. Strategic Plan Contract
	Printout: Strategic Plan Contract
	1. Capitola Community Grants Strategic Plan- OSC SOW

	D. Signal Coordination
	Printout: Signal Coordination
	1. Final Cost Estimate
	2. 41st Ave Adaptive Traffic Signal System Plans

	E. Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations
	Printout: Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. COVID-19 Emergency- Update 29
	Printout: COVID-19 Emergency- Update 29

	B. Capitola Village Banners
	Printout: Capitola Village Banners
	1. Village Banners Proof

	C. Outdoor Dining Update
	Printout: Outdoor Dining Update

	D. Wharf Project - Phase 1 to bid
	Printout: Wharf Project - Phase 1 to bid
	1. Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 plans
	2. Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 estimate

	E. Library Lease
	Printout: Library Lease
	1. County Bid Final
	2. DRAFT Capitola Library Lease
	3. RDA County Library Settlement 2004

	F. Bail Schedule Update
	Printout: Bail Schedule Update

	G. League Voting Delegate
	Printout: League Voting Delegate


	9. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	3.A · Item 8.B - one staff provided attachment
	3.B · Item 8.C - eight public comment emails
	7.A · Approve Council Minutes
	7.A.1 · 6-24-21 draft
	7.A.2 · 6-24-21 draft SPECIAL

	7.B · Approval of City Check Registers
	7.B.1 · 6-4-21 Check Register
	7.B.2 · 6-11-21 Check Register
	7.B.3 · 6-18-21 Check Register
	7.B.4 · 6-25-21 Check Register
	7.B.5 · 7-2-21 Check Register

	7.C · Strategic Plan Contract
	7.C.1 · Capitola Community Grants Strategic Plan- OSC SOW

	7.D · Signal Coordination
	7.D.1 · Final Cost Estimate
	7.D.2 · 41st Ave Adaptive Traffic Signal System Plans

	7.E · Road & Maintenance/Rehabilitation Allocations
	8.A · COVID-19 Emergency- Update 29
	8.B · Capitola Village Banners
	8.B.1 · Village Banners Proof

	8.C · Outdoor Dining Update
	8.D · Wharf Project - Phase 1 to bid
	8.D.1 · Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 plans
	8.D.2 · Wharf Rehabilitation Phase 1 estimate

	8.E · Library Lease
	8.E.1 · County Bid Final
	8.E.2 · DRAFT Capitola Library Lease
	8.E.3 · RDA County Library Settlement 2004

	8.F · Bail Schedule Update
	8.G · League Voting Delegate




